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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1995
PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc., incorporated under thesafithe State of Delaware on February 3, 1940 saiedessor to a business originally
organized in 1920, is engaged primarily in the erqtion, production, and sale of crude oil and ratgas and in contract drilling of oil and
gas wells for others.

These activities account for the major portiontsfoiperating revenues. The Registrant is also exjegthe manufacture and distribution of
odorants for use in the gas transmission and ldigtan industry, and in the ownership, developmant] operation of commercial real estate.

The Registrant is organized into four separaterartmus operating divisions being contract drilliod;and gas exploration, production and
natural gas marketing; chemicals; and real esfdtéle there is a limited amount of intercompanyivatit, each division operates essentially
independently of the others. Each of the divisiexsept exploration and production, conduct thespective business through wholly owned
subsidiaries. Operating decentralization is baldrmea centralized finance division, whi



handles all accounting, data processing, budgetisgrance, cash management, and related activities

Most of the Registrant's current exploration effsrtoncentrated in Louisiana, Oklahoma, Texas,thadHugoton Field of western Kansas.
The Registrant also explores from time to timehim Rocky Mountain area, New Mexico, Alabama, Flariand Mississippi. Substantially all
of the Registrant's gas production is sold to @sbid by a marketing subsidiary. This subsidiasp gurchases gas from unaffiliated third
parties for resale.

The Registrant's contract drilling is primarily clutted domestically in Alabama, Oklahoma, TexassMbippi, and Louisiana, and offshore
from platforms in the Gulf of Mexico and offshoralornia. The Registrant has also operated duiswal 1995 in six international locatiol
Venezuela, Ecuador, Colombia, Trinidad and Toba@men, and Bolivia.

The Registrant's odorants are manufactured irats n Baytown, Texas, and the Registrant's retdte investments are located in Tulsa,
Oklahoma, where the Registrant has its executifieest

CONTRACT DRILLING

The Registrant believes that it is one of the mkgond and offshore platform drilling contractorstle western hemisphere. Operating
principally in North and South America, the Regstrspecializes in deep drilling in major gas pidg basins of the United States and in
drilling for oil and gas in remote areas of the ldoFor its international operations, the Registielao constructs and operates rigs which are
transportable by helicopter. In the United Staties,Registrant draws its customers primarily fréwa major oil companies and the larger
independents, which are the companies generallggat
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in deep drilling. The Registrant also drills fag @wn oil and gas division. In South America, tregRtrant's current customers include the
Venezuelan state petroleum companies and majaonatienal oil companies.

British Petroleum Company, P.L.C., including itfiletes, ("BP") is the Registrant's largest singlestomer. The Registrant performs drilling
services for BP, both domestically and internatilgn&ach drilling rig operates under a separatetiaxt. The Registrant believes that its
relationship with BP is good. Revenues from drjlgervices performed for BP in fiscal 1995 accodifite approximately 18% of the
Registrant's consolidated revenues for the saniedver

The Registrant provides drilling equipment, persnand camps for others on a contract basis fploeation and development of onshore
areas and for development from fixed platformsffatwmre areas. Each of the drilling rigs considtermines, drawworks, a mast, pumps to
circulate the drilling fluid, blowout preventersdallstring, and related equipment. The intendesdl wepth and the drilling site conditions are
the principal factors that determine the size gpe bf rig most suitable for a particular drillifgp. A helicopter rig is one that can be
disassembled into component part loads of 4,000¢®and transported to remote locations by helepptargo plane, or other means.

The Registrant's workover rigs are equipped withirees, drawworks, a mast, pumps, and blowout pteveifon a smaller scale than the
drilling rigs). A workover rig is used to compledenew well after the hole has been drilled by Hinlgirig, and to remedy various downhole
problems that occur in producing wells.
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The Registrant's contracts for drilling are obtditlerough competitive bidding or as a result ofategions with customers, and sometimes
cover multi-well and multirear projects. Most of the contracts are perforored "daywork” basis, under which the Registraairgbs a fixe:
rate per day, with the price determined by thetiocadepth, and complexity of the well to be dnil| operating conditions, the duration of the
contract, and the competitive forces of the mar&etrrent market conditions involve an oversupplygolling rigs for the work available. As
consequence, the Registrant is and will be perfogrand bidding for contracts on a combination "ég@t' and "daywork" basis, under which
the Registrant charges a fixed rate per foot o ldoilled to a stated depth, usually no deeper 18000 feet, and a fixed rate per day for the
remainder of the hole. Contracts performed on atége" basis involve a greater element of rislh®dontractor than do contracts performed
on a "daywork" basis. Market conditions have aézbthe Registrant to accept "turnkey" contractseumehich the Registrant charges a fixed
sum to deliver a hole to a stated depth and adgoefesnish services such as testing, coring, asthgathe hole which are not normally done

a "footage" basis. "Turnkey" contracts entail vagydegrees of risk greater than the usual "footagatract. The Registrant believes that
under current market conditions "daywork" basistiamt rates are too low to adequately compensatamiors and that "footage" and
"turnkey" basis contract rates do not adequatetypansate contractors for the added risks. HowéverRegistrant intends to remain in the
drilling contracting business in anticipation ofedurn to more favorable market conditions. Contréar use of the Registrant's drilling
equipment are "well-to-well" or for a fixed term.
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"Well-to-well" contracts are cancelable at the optof either party upon the completion of drilliagany one site, and fixed-term contracts
customarily provide for termination at the electmfrthe customer, with an "early termination paythén be paid to the contractor if a
contract is terminated prior to the expirationtod fixed term.

While current fixed term contracts are for onehieee year periods, some fixed term and wellvedl contracts are expected to be continue
longer periods than the original terms, althoughdbntracting parties have no legal obligationdesd. Contracts generally contain renews
extension provisions exercisable at the optiohefdustomer at prices mutually agreeable to thésRagt and the customer, and in most
instances provide for additional payments for nipatlon and demobilization. Contracts for work andign countries generally provide for
payment in United States dollars, except for am®ueuired to meet local expenses; however, intrgigsgovernment owned petroleum
companies are requesting that a greater propasfitinese payments be made in local currenciesRegealations and Hazards, page 1-8.

Domestic Drilling

The Registrant believes it is a major land andhaffe platform drilling contractor in the domestiarket. At the end of September, 1995, the
Registrant had 31 of a total of 41 available rigerating in the United States and had managementaods for two operator owned rigs in
offshore California.

The Registrant is competitively strongest in deeftirty rigs. Twenty-three of its existing rigs atapable of drilling to depths in excess of
20,000 feet.
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International Drilling

The Registrant's international drilling operatidregan in 1958 with the acquisition of the Sinc@irCompany's drilling rigs in Venezuela.
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A., a wholly od/sabsidiary of the Registrant, is one of the legdirilling contractors in Venezuela.
Beginning in 1972, with the introduction of itsdirhelicopter rig, the Registrant expanded int@ptlatin American countries.

Venezuelan operations continue to be a signifipant of the Registrant's operations. The Regispeggently owns and operates 18 drilling
rigs in Venezuela and has labor contracts to opdvad government-owned drilling rigs in Venezudlhe Registrant had a utilization rate of
89% for these rigs during fiscal 1995. The Regidtreorked for all three government owned produaompanies in Venezuela (Corpoven,
Maraven and Lagoven) during the fiscal year endsgaiédnber 30, 1995. Collectively, revenues fromttinee producing companies amounted
to approximately 13% of the Registrant's consofidatvenues during fiscal 1995. The Registranebes its relations with such producing
companies are good.

During the mid-1970s, the Venezuelan governmentnalized the exploration and production busindéshe present time it appears the
Venezuelan government will not nationalize the cacttdrilling business.

The Registrant's operations in Colombia continui@d¢cease. The Registrant presently owns and gggetan drilling rigs in Colombia. The
Registrant's utilization rate for such rigs was 83ding fiscal 1995. During fiscal 1995 the revemgamerated by Colombian drilling
operations contributed approximately 16.6% of tlegiBtrant's consolidated revenues.
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In addition to its operations in Venezuela and @d@, the Registrant in fiscal 1995 owned and dperéour rigs in Ecuador, one rig in
Trinidad and Tobago, one rig in Bolivia, and orgein Yemen. During 1995, the rig located in Yemeaswnoved to Bolivia. In Ecuador,
Trinidad and Tobago, and Bolivia, the contractswith large international oil companies.

In August of 1994, a newly formed venture owned 38¢the Registrant and 50% by its affiliate, Atwdd@deanics, Inc., was awarded a term
contract in Australia for the design, constructéod operation of a new generation platform rig. figewhich incorporates some of the latest
technology in instrumentation and remote controthamization of drilling equipment, was recently gated. While the platform operator
has postponed commencement of mobilization to Aliatuntil March of 1997, the operator will pay thenture a holding rate during the
postponement.

The Registrant was recently awarded a three-year ¢entract to provide platform drilling services fa major oil company in the Gulf of
Mexico. The Registrant should complete construciioBecember of 1995 of a new generation rig fetafiation upon a tension leg platform.
The tension leg platform concept allows platforrflidg operations to be conducted at significarghgater water depths. Drilling operations
are expected to commence in the spring of 1996 s@hge major oil company entered into a letter tarinfor the Registrant's construction of
a second rig which is to be installed on a tentggrplatform in approximately 3,200 feet of watethe Gulf of Mexico. A three-year term
drilling contract for the second rig is currentlgibg finalized with rig construction scheduled ®dompleted and the contract to comment
December, 1996.
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Competition

The contract drilling business is highly compe@tiCompetition in contract drilling involves suctfors as price, rig availability, efficiency,
condition of equipment, reputation, and customkatians. Competition is primarily on a regional isaand may vary significantly by region
any particular time. Drilling rigs can be readilywed from one region to another in response to@bain levels of activity, and an
oversupply of rigs in any region may result.

Although many contracts for drilling services aveaaded based solely on price, the Registrant has beccessful in establishing long-term
relationships with certain customers which havevedid the Registrant to secure drilling work evesutih the Registrant may not have been
the lowest bidder for such work. The Registrantd@ginued to attempt to differentiate its servibased upon its engineering design
expertise, operational efficiency, and safety amdrenmental awareness.

The Registrant made a commitment to deep drillinthe early 1970's. During the past several y¢haese has been what appears to the
Registrant to be an oversupply of unregulated ahgias. As a result, the demand for deep drillovggfas has decreased.

Regulations and Hazards

The drilling operations of the Registrant are sabfe the many hazards inherent in the busineskjdimg blowouts and well fires, which
could cause personal injury, suspend drilling of@na, seriously damage or destroy the equipmemived, and cause substantial damage to
producing formations and the surrounding areas.
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The Registrant believes that it is adequately duwith coverage for comprehensive general lighitiublic liability, property damage
(including insurance against loss by fire and stdstowout, and cratering risks), and employer'siligy. No insurance is carried against loss
of earnings. The Registrant's present coveragbdées contracted through fiscal 1996. However, @wwdf conditions generally in the liabil
insurance industry, no assurance can be giverthba&egistrant's present coverage will not be dbettduring fiscal 1996 nor that insurance
coverage will continue to be available at ratessabared reasonable.

International operations are subject to certaiitipal, economic, and other uncertainties not emtered in domestic operations, including
risks of expropriation of equipment as well as expiation of a particular oil company operator'sgerty and drilling rights, taxation policit
foreign exchange restrictions, currency rate flatians, and general hazards associated with fosmigareignty over certain areas in which
operations are conducted. There can be no assutatdbere will not be changes in local laws, tatjons, and administrative requirements
or the interpretation thereof, any of which changmsld have a material adverse effect on the @ioifity of the Registrant's operations or on
the ability of the Registrant to continue operagigmcertain areas. Because of the impact of llaeed, in certain areas the Registrant's
operations may, in the future, be conducted thramghies in which local citizens own interests dnbugh entities (including joint ventures)
in which the Registrant holds only a minority irgst, or pursuant to arrangements under which tigésRant conducts operations under
contract to local entities. While the Registrarliehess that neither
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operating through such entities or pursuant to sudngements nor the restructuring of existingat@ns along such lines would have a
material adverse effect on the Registrant's operatr revenues, there can be no assurance thaegistrant will in all cases be able to
structure or restructure its operations to confayriocal law (or the administration thereof) omteracceptable to the Registrant. The
Registrant further attempts to minimize the potntnpact of such risks by operating in more thaa geographical area and by attemptin
obtain indemnification from operators against egpiation, nationalization, and deprivation.

During fiscal 1995, approximately 33% of the Remgist's consolidated revenues were generated frtsmattional contract drilling
operations. Over 90% of the international reverwee from Venezuela, Colombia, and Ecuador. Exposupotential losses from currency
devaluation is minimal in the countries of Colombaiad Ecuador. In those countries, all receivalbhespayments are currently in U.S. doll
Cash balances are kept at a minimum which assiseglucing exposure.

In Venezuela, approximately 65% of the Registraetenues are in U.S. dollars and the other 35%nate local currency, the Bolivar. The
Registrant is exposed to certain risks of curraeyaluation in Venezuela as a result of Bolivaereable balances and necessary Bolivar
cash balances. In 1994, the Venezuelan governmstatilshed a fixed exchange rate in hopes of staguetonomic problems caused by a
high rate of inflation. During the first week of Bember, 1995, the government established a nevaagetrate, resulting in further
devaluation of the Bolivar. It is estimated that fRegistrant will not experience a material lokany, from such devaluation.
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It is uncertain when the government will again atifhe exchange rate, but the Registrant doesxpetcelosses from future adjustments in
the exchange rate to be material. The Registrasbblan able to offset some of the devaluation expdsrough a government approved
mechanism which allows the purchase of local curyext favorable market exchange rates.

Many aspects of the Registrant's operations aresiuio government regulation, including those tieato drilling practices and methods and
the level of taxation. In addition, various couesr(including the United States) have environmaeglations which affect drilling
operations. Drilling contractors may be liable l@mages resulting from pollution. Under United &ategulations, drilling contractors must
establish financial responsibility to cover potahtiability for pollution of offshore waters. Geradly, the Registrant is indemnified under
drilling contracts from environmental damages, @x@e certain cases of surface pollution, but thforceability of indemnification provisior

in foreign countries may be questionable.

The Registrant believes that it is in substantamhpliance with all legislation and regulations affeg its operations in the drilling of oil and
gas wells and in controlling the discharge of waisi® date, compliance has not materially affetedcapital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position of the Registrant, althougbsth measures may add to the costs of operatitigglelquipment in some instances. Further
legislation or regulation may reasonably be anditggd, and the effect thereof on operations canaqrrédicted.
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OIL AND GAS DIVISION

The Registrant engages in the origination of protgpehe identification, acquisition, explorati@amd development of prospective and proved
oil and gas properties; the production and salzrude oil, condensate, and natural gas; and thketiag of natural gas. The Registrant
considers itself a medium-sized independent pradédkof the Registrant's oil and gas operatiores @nducted in the United States.

Most of the Registrant's current exploration aritlinly effort is concentrated in Oklahoma, Kansaexas, and Louisiana. The Registrant also
explores from time to time in New Mexico, Alabankdgrida, Michigan, Mississippi, and the Rocky Maaintarea.

A reorganization of the Registrant's exploratiod production division was accomplished in Septemb@®5. This action resulted in the
consolidation or elimination of several managenpasitions, the elimination of several consultinglggists, and the formation of several
geographical exploitation teams. These teams ampised of geological, engineering, and land perebwho will primarily develop in-
house oil and gas prospects as well as reviewitetinmumber of outside prospects and acquisitionshieir respective geographical areas.
The Registrant believes that this structure withaleach team to gain greater expertise in itseethpe geographical area and will encourage
the development of successful prospects.

Most of the current exploration and production emgpks were retained in the reorganized divisior Rhagistrant expects that the total
number of employees within the division during &és£996 will remain approximately the
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same. The reorganized division will be managedikyRegistrant's Vice President of Production.

During the past fiscal year, the Registrant hagicoad to reduce its expenditures for exploratibfractured Austin Chalk reservoirs in
central Louisiana and has elected to allow cexdiand gas leases covering approximately 52,66&cres to expire. The Registrant's pre
efforts are concentrated in the western portioitsadicreage located primarily in Vernon and Rapiasshes, Louisiana. During 1994, OXY
USA drilled an Austin Chalk well, adjacent to a st#mtial acreage position of the Registrant. A sdamell offsetting the original well has
been commenced. The Registrant did not particigate working interest owner in either of these sydut retained an overriding royalty
interest. In addition, the Registrant reached areagent with another exploration and production gany whereby the Registrant will redt

its interest in certain of its acreage in retumdayment of all of the Registrant's share of iigiland completion costs in a minimum of two
(2) Austin Chalk wells. The first well has beenlldd and is presently being tested. The Registrélhmonitor production from these wells to
assist in the determination of the amount of itdipigation, if any, in additional drilling in tharea and the extent of its continued payment of
annual rentals.

The Registrant's exploration and development pradras covered a range of prospects, from shalloaatband butter" programs to deep
expensive, high risk/high return wells. During §6@995, the Registrant participated in 46 develepnand/or wildcat wells, which resultec
new discoveries of approximately 8.8 bcf of gas 228,539 barrels of oil and condensate. The Regisparticipated in 13 additional
development wells, which resulted in
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the development of approximately 3.0 bcf of gas 4d@4 barrels of oil and condensate which wasipusly classified as proved
undeveloped or proved developed nonproducing rese/ total of $23,199,430 was spent in the Regyis® exploration and development
program during fiscal 1995. This figure is exclusof expenditures for acreage and acquisitionsafqd oil and gas reserves. The
Registrant's total company-wide acquisition costaftreage in fiscal 1995 was $1,564,986.

The Registrant spent $1,228,071 for the acquisiifgoroved oil and gas reserves during fiscal 1%8serves from such acquisitions totaled
approximately 1.9 bcf of natural gas and 310 bamékrude oil and condensate. In addition, theifemt sold 47 properties for $325,126.
The reserves associated with these sales werexapately 116,000 mcf of natural gas and 26,251diswf crude oil.

Market for Oil and Gas

The Registrant does not refine any of its produnctiche availability of a ready market for such proiibn depends upon a number of factors,
including the availability of other domestic protioa, crude oil imports, the proximity and capaaifyoil and gas pipelines, and general
fluctuations in supply and demand. The Registramtschot anticipate any unusual difficulty in contitag to sell its production of crude oil
and natural gas to purchasers and end-users ailprgumarket prices and under arrangements tleatismal and customary in the industry.
The Registrant and its wholly owned subsidiary,migich & Payne Energy Services, Inc., have sucabgsfeveloped markets with end-
users, local distribution companies, and naturallakers for gas produced from successful wildedls or development wells. Although t
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market for natural gas has been in a state of swpply for the past several years, the Registsaot the opinion that the supply/demand for
natural gas is moving towards a state of equilibrilVinter demand and its effect on gas storagalsignificant effect on natural gas pricing.
The stability of short-term prices for natural gél largely depend upon the demand during theihgateason and the reduction of storage
throughout the United States. Other causes affgstipply/demand imbalances may be federal regulaticthe market; large quantities of
developed gas reserves in Canada and Mexico alafmbexport by pipelines to the United Statel &witching between fuel oil and natu
gas; development of coalbed methane; and develapofidarge quantities of liquefied natural gas itinidad and Tobago and Africa availa
for export to the United States.

Historically, the Registrant has had no long-teates contracts for its crude oil and condensatdymtion. The Registrant continues its recent
practice of contracting for the sale of its Kanaad Oklahoma and portions of its west Texas crulderaterms of six to twelve months in an
attempt to assure itself of higher than postedegrfor such crude oil production.

Competition

The Registrant competes with numerous other corepamd individuals in the acquisition of oil and gaoperties and the marketing of oil
and gas. The Registrant continues to believe tishiould prepare for increased exploration actiwiihout committing to a definite drilling
timetable involving large expenditures. The Registralso believes that the intense competitiorifferacquisition of gas producing properties
will continue. Through its acquisition experientiee Registrant believes it can still remain contpetiand intends
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to continue purchasing quality long-life oil andsgaserves. The Registrant's competitors includermed companies, other independent oil
companies, and individuals, many of whom have faeresources, staffs, and facilities substatiaiger than those of the Registrant. In
addition, many of the Registrant's competitors pase reserves based upon price forecasts andeesaiuations, which the Registrant
believes are substantially higher than the Regisg@rice forecasts and reserve evaluations. Ni@aggr oil companies have committed much
of their resources to offshore and internationglésitions and exploration. Although the effectliése competitive factors on the Registrant
cannot be predicted with certainty, it would apptbat the withdrawal of major oil companies frormtestic exploration and production will
provide increased domestic opportunities for thgifeant.

The Registrant's fiscal 1996 exploration and préidadoudget of approximately $28,000,000 is 29.4%ater than its actual exploration and
production expenditures in fiscal 1995.

The Registrant intends to continue to pursue thieh@mse of proven producing properties and to asailf of the opportunities for drilling and
development.

Title to Oil and Gas Properties

The Registrant undertakes title examination anébpmis curative work at the time properties are &egl The Registrant believes that title to
its oil and gas properties is generally good arfdrggble in accordance with standards acceptaliteeimdustry.

Oil and gas properties in general are subject stornary royalty interests contracted for in conimecivith the acquisitions of title, liens
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incident to operating agreements, liens for curtaxes, and other burdens and minor encumbranassirents, and restrictions. The
Registrant believes that the existence of suchdngavill not materially detract from the generadluesof its leasehold interests.

Governmental Regulation in the Oil and Gas Industry

The Registrant's domestic operations are affected fime to time in varying degrees by political’/dlmpments and federal and state laws
regulations. In particular, oil and gas productiperations and economics are affected by pricer@iptdix, and other laws relating to the
petroleum industry; by changes in such laws; anddmstantly changing administrative regulations sikiates in which the Registrant
conducts or may conduct oil and gas activities lagtthe production and sale of oil and natural gasduding regulation of the size of drillir
and spacing units or proration units, the denditwells which may be drilled, and the unitizationpmoling of oil and gas properties. In
addition, state conservation laws establish maximates of production from oil and natural gas wejknerally prohibit the venting or flarii
of natural gas, and impose certain requirementrdégg the ratability of production. The effecttbése regulations is to limit the amounts of
oil and natural gas the Registrant can produce ftenvells, and to limit the number of wells or &ions at which the Registrant can drill. In
addition, legislation affecting the natural gas aildndustry is under constant review. Inasmuclsash laws and regulations are frequently
expanded, amended, or reinterpreted, the Regissramable to predict the future cost or impactahplying with such regulations. The
Registrant believes that its oil and gas operatoameently are not materially affected by such laws
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The domestic production and sale of oil and gasbs@ subject to regulation by United States fddmsthorities including the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission ("FERC").

Regulatory Controls

The Registrant is subject to regulation by the FERIG respect to various aspects of its domestiorahgas operations under the Natural
Act ("NGA") and the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978.

The Natural Gas Wellhead Decontrol Act of 1989 adeehboth the price and non-price decontrol prowmssiof the Natural Gas Policy Act of
1978 for the purpose of providing complete decdrdfdirst sales of natural gas by January 1, 1998 Registrant believes that substantially
all of its gas is decontrolled.

On April 8, 1992; August 3, 1992; and November 2992, the FERC issued Order 636, Order 636-A, amnlki636- B (collectively, "Order
636"), respectively, which requires interstate pipgs to provide transportation unbundled fromttisaies of gas. Also, such pipelines must
provide open-access transportation on a basisstliegjual for all gas supplies. Order 636 has begrbeimented through individual interstate
pipeline restructuring proceedings. Although Oréi@8 has provided the Registrant with additionalketaccess and more fairly applied
transportation service rates, it has also subjetiedrRegistrant to more restrictive pipeline imbaktolerances and greater penalties for
violation of those tolerances. Appeals of Order &86currently pending and the Registrant canredipt the ultimate outcome of court
review. Order 636 may be reversed in whole or it pa review. Individual restructuring orders mdsoabe reversed in whole or in part
whether
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or not Order 636 is upheld. Assuming that Order i83fpheld in its entirety, the Registrant belietrest it will benefit from the provisions of
such Order.

The FERC has recently announced its intention-&xemine certain of its transportation-related @es, including the manner in which
interstate pipelines release transportation capacitier Order 636 and the use of market-based f@t@sterstate gas transportation. While
any resulting FERC action would affect the Regrstanly indirectly, these inquiries are intendedudher enhance competition in the natt
gas markets. In addition, the FERC issued a paliaiement on how interstate natural gas pipelinagecover the cost of new pipeline
facilities. While this policy statement in its pees form affects the Registrant only indirectlye thew policy should enhance competition in
natural gas markets and facilitate constructiogasf supply laterals. However, requests for rehganirthis policy statement are currently
pending. The Registrant cannot predict what adtienFERC will take on these requests. HoweverRibgistrant believes any such action
not have a material impact on the Registrant.

Under the NGA, natural gas gathering facilities @xempt from FERC jurisdiction. The Registrant &edis that its gathering systems meel
traditional tests that the FERC has used to estahlipipeline's status as a gatherer. Commencikizynl1994, the FERC has issued a serit
orders in individual cases that delineate its gatlggpolicy. Among other matters, the FERC slightbrrowed its statutory tests for
establishing gathering status and reaffirmed thdwés not have jurisdiction over natural gas gatgefacilities and services and that such
facilities and services are properly regulatedthyesauthorities. As a result, natural gas gatigemay receive
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greater regulatory scrutiny by state agenciesdtitimn, the FERC has approved several transfeintbystate pipelines of gathering facilities
to unregulated gathering companies, includingiaféis. This could allow such companies to compeieeraffectively with independent
gatherers. Several of the FERC's orders deline@tsntgew gathering policy are subject to pendingrtappeals. It is not possible at this time
to predict the ultimate effect of the new policithaugh it could affect access to and rates chafgeuhterstate gathering services. However,
the Registrant does not presently believe the sttits facilities would be affected by modifiaatito the statutory criteria.

The Registrant's natural gas gathering operatianslmcome subject to additional safety and operatieegulations relating to the design,
installation, testing, construction, operation,lagpment, and management of facilities. Pipelirietgassues have recently become the sul
of increasing focus in various political and adrsirative arenas at both the state and federaldelel example, various federal legislative
proposals addressing pipeline safety issues arertly pending, including a federal "one call" figation system and certain new
construction specifications. Similar or additiofedislation is likely to be proposed in the neaufa. The Registrant believes that the adoj
of additional pipeline safety legislation will ntaterially affect the Registrant in light of itdatvely minor gathering operations.

On February 2, 1994, the Kansas Corporation Comomg¢5KCC") issued an order which modified allowaslapplicable to wells within the
Hugoton Gas Field so that those proration unitswugbich infill wells had been drilled would be

1-20



assigned a larger allowable than those units withdill wells. Such order was affirmed by a Kanghstrict court in September of 1994. An
appeal of the KCC's order is presently pendinga&snsequence of this order, the Registrant hsdi47 infill wells and believes that it w
be necessary in the near future to drill an additi®5 to 70 wells with the total costs to the Regint ranging from $6.5 to $7 million. Seve
of these wells will be drilled to a depth of 5,5@@t in search of additional reserve-bearing foromet

Additional proposals and proceedings that mightcifthe oil and gas industry are pending beforeCinegress, the FERC, and the courts.
Registrant cannot predict when or whether any gmoposals may become effective. In the past, theralegas industry has been very hea
regulated. There is no assurance that the curegntatory approach pursued by the FERC will comtiflotwithstanding the foregoing, it is
anticipated that compliance with existing fedestdte and local laws, rules and regulations witlheve a material adverse effect upon the
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive pmsiof the Registrant.

Federal Income Taxation

The Registrant's oil and gas operations, and tirelpam industry in general, are affected by cerfaderal income tax laws, in particular the
Tax Reform Act of 1986, which was amended by thergy Policy Act of 1992 and the Revenue RecondaiiaAct of 1993. The Registrant
has considered the effects of such federal inc@xéaivs on its operations and has concluded tleae till be no material impact on its
liquidity, capital expenditures, or internationglevations.
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Environmental Laws

The Registrant's activities are subject to existetgral and state laws and regulations governingr@nmental quality and pollution control.
Such laws and regulations may substantially iner¢fas costs of exploring, developing, or produ@iignd gas and may prevent or delay the
commencement or continuation of a given operatiothe opinion of the Registrant's managemengpesrations substantially comply with
applicable environmental legislation and regulatiorhe existence of such legislation and regulatitas had no material effect on the
Registrant's operations, and the cost of compliiveewith has not been material to date.

The Registrant believes that compliance with exisfederal, state, and local laws, rules, and egguis regulating the discharge of materials
into the environment or otherwise relating to thetection of the environment will not have any mitleeffect upon the capital expenditures,
earnings, or competitive position of the Registrant

Natural Gas Marketing

Helmerich & Payne Energy Services, Inc., ("HPESbihtinues into its seventh year of business witptemis on the purchase and marketing
of the Registrant's natural gas production. In @aidi HPESI purchases third-party gas for resatb@ovides compression and gathering
services for a fee. During fiscal year 1995, HP&Sdles of third-party gas constituted approxinyatl6% of the Registrant's consolidated
revenues.

HPESI sells natural gas to markets in the MidwastRocky Mountain areas. Term gas sales contraetfoavaried periods ranging from
four months to seven years. However, recent castfeave tended toward shorter terms.
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The remainder of the Registrant's gas is sold uspler market contracts having a duration of 30 aaysss. For fiscal 1996, HPESI's term
gas sales contracts provide for the sale of apprately 13 bcf of gas. HPESI presently intends ffillfsuch term sales contracts with a
portion of the gas reserves purchased from thed®agi as well as from its purchases of third-pgety. See pages I-14 through3-regardini
the market, competition, and regulation of natges.

CHEMICAL OPERATIONS

The Registrant owns a chemical plant at Baytowxasewhere it manufactures mercaptans and sulfitigsh are blended for use as warning
agents in natural and liquefied petroleum gases.Régistrant believes that it is the largest sisgleplier of gas odorants in North America.
Its odorants are also sold in Korea, Latin Ameriastralia, and Japan. These products are markstéue Registrant using the trade names
of "Natural Gas Odorizing" and "Captan." In additithe Registrant makes bulk sales of mercaptanssias sulfiding agents.

The Registrant is one of only two companies whilssodorants for liquefied petroleum gases arahis of only three companies which sells
odorants for natural gas within the United Staitd® Registrant believes that its market share apades 40% to 50% of all domestic
odorant sales. Competition for liquefied petroleatiorant sales is primarily based upon service danations, while natural gas odorant
manufacturers compete for sales based on priceamnite considerations.

The manufacturing facility is adjacent to a magfirery and chemical plant complex of Exxon Corpiora from which the Registrant obta
most of
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its principal raw materials. The Registrant's cheahplant and related operations are subject toemouos local, state, and federal
environmental laws and regulations. The Registoatieves it is currently in substantial compliamdg#h all such laws and that compliance
with the same will not have any material effectmploe capital expenditures, earnings or competjivgtion of the Registrant.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1995, the Régist retained an investment banking firm for thegwse of advising the Registrant
regarding the potential sale of its chemical openst The Registrant has authorized such firm kiecisndications of interest in the
Registrant's chemical operations from certain proipe purchasers.

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS

The Registrant's real estate operations are coadleoiclusively within the metropolitan area of Bul®klahoma. Its major holding is Utica
Square Shopping Center, consisting of fifteen sepauildings, with parking and other common féieidi covering an area of approximately
30 acres. Fourteen of these buildings provide apprately 405,709 square feet of net leasable retdds and storage space (98% of which is
currently leased) and approximately 18,590 squegedf net leasable general office space (99% aftwik currently leased). Approximately
24% of the general office space is occupied byRégistrant's real estate operations. The fiftebotliling is an eight-story medical office
building which provides approximately 76,379 squaeg of net leasable medical office space (78%ldth is currently leased). The
Registrant has a two-level parking garage locatdtie southwest corner of Utica Square that caoranwdate approximately 250 cars.
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At the end of the 1995 fiscal year the Registramied 19 of a total of 73 units in The Yorktown,&story luxury residential condominium
with approximately 150,940 square feet of livingatocated on a six-acre tract adjacent to UticeaBgShopping Center. Eleven of the
Registrant's units are currently leased.

The Registrant owns an eight-story office buildiogated diagonally across the street from Uticaa®e$shopping Center, containing
approximately 87,000 square feet of net leasabterge office and retail space. This building hou$esRegistrant's principal executive
offices. Approximately 11% of this building was $ea to third parties during fiscal 1995.

The Registrant is also engaged in the businessasfrig multi-tenant warehouse space. Three warehdu®wn as Space Center, each
containing approximately 165,000 square feet ofeetable space, are situated in the southeastfpBulsa at the intersection of two major

limited-access highways. Present occupancy is 908 Registrant also owns approximately 1 1/2 acfemdeveloped land lying adjacent to
such warehouses.

The Registrant also owns a 270 acre tract knowSoashpark located in the high-growth area of saagh&ulsa and consisting of
approximately 257 acres of undeveloped real estadeapproximately 13 acres of multi-tenant wareba@rsa. The warehouse area is known
as Space Center East and consists of two warehawrgesontaining approximately 90,000 square fedtthe other containing approximately
112,500 square feet. Occupancy has reached 1008arniyi due to the expansion of several existingitegs. Preliminary planning has been
accomplished to determine the best developmentfaséise
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remaining land. A high quality office park, withrggheral commercial, office/warehouse, and hotelssihas been contemplated.

The Registrant also owns a fibetlding complex called Tandem Business Park. Tiogept is located adjacent to and east of the SGacdel
East facility and contains approximately six acreith approximately 88,084 square feet of officef@@muse space. Occupancy has increased
from 47% during fiscal 1995 to 68% currently duerarily to the addition of one new tenant. The R&gint also owns a twelve-building
complex, consisting of approximately 204,600 sqdeet of office/warehouse space, called Tulsa BassirPark. The project is located south
of the Space Center facility, separated by a ¢ige$, and contains approximately 12 acres. Ocanphas increased to 94% due to expansion
of existing tenants and additions of new tenantsduiscal 1995.

The Registrant also owns two service center prigseltcated adjacent to arterial streets in soaitftral Tulsa. The first, called Maxim Cen
consists of one office/warehouse building contajrapproximately 40,800 square feet and locatedppnoximately 2.5 acres. During fiscal
1995 occupancy increased from 50% to 65% primaltily to one tenant's expansion. The second, caliednMPlace, consists of one
office/warehouse building containing approximatgB;750 square feet and located on approximately &#®es. During fiscal 1995,
occupancy increased from 63% to 81% by the adddfame new tenant and the expansion of one egistinant.
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FINANCIAL

Information relating to Revenue and Income by BesinSegments may be found on page 11 of the RegistAnnual Report to Shareholc
for fiscal 1995, which is incorporated herein bference.

EMPLOYEES

The Registrant had 1,716 employees within the drigates (11 of which were part-time employees) B89 employees in international
operations as of September 30, 1995.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
CONTRACT DRILLING
The following table sets forth certain informatiooncerning the Registrant's existing domesticidgltigs:
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Rig Registrant's  Optimum Working Present

Designation Classification Depth in Feet Location
110 Medium Depth 12,000 Texas
141 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
142 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
143 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
145 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
146 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
156 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
157 Medium Depth 14,000 Texas
95 Medium Depth 16,000 Texas
96 Medium Depth 16,000 Oklahoma
118 Medium Depth 16,000 Texas
119 Medium Depth 16,000 Texas
120 Medium Depth 16,000 Texas
147 Medium Depth 16,000 Texas
154 Medium Depth 16,000 Texas
78 Deep 20,000 Texas
79 Deep 20,000 Louisiana
80 Deep 20,000 Oklahoma
89 Deep 20,000 Alabama
92 Deep 20,000 Oklahoma
94 Deep 20,000 Texas
98 Deep 20,000 Oklahoma
122 Deep 26,000 Louisiana
97 Deep 26,000 Texas
99 Deep 26,000 Texas
137 Deep 26,000 Texas
149 Deep 26,000 Texas
72 Very Deep 30,000 Louisiana
73 Very Deep 30,000 Louisiana
127 Very Deep 30,000 Oklahoma
101 Medium Depth 16,000 * Gulf of Mexico
104 Medium Depth 16,000 * Offshore California
108 Medium Depth 16,000 * Gulf of Mexico
91 Deep 20,000 * Gulf of Mexico
102 Deep 20,000 * Offshore California
103 Deep 20,000 * Offshore California
105 Deep 20,000 * Gulf of Mexico
109 Deep 20,000 * Gulf of Mexico
100 Deep 26,000 * Gulf of Mexico
106 Deep 26,000 * Gulf of Mexico
107 Deep 26,000 * Gulf of Mexico

* Offshore platform rig
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The following table sets forth information with pest to the utilization of the Registrant's domedtilling rigs for the periods indicated:

Years end ed September 30,
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995
Number of rigs owned at end of
period 46 39 42 47 41
Average rig utilization rate
during period (1) 47% 42% 53% 69% 71%

(1) Arig is considered to be utilized when it gevated or being moved, assembled, or dismantlddrwzontract.

The following table sets forth certain informatiooncerning the Registrant's international drilliigs:

Rig Registrant's Optimum Work ing Present
Designation  Classification Depth in Fe et Location
3 Workover/drilling 6,000 Venezuela
14 Workover/drilling 6,000 Venezuela
19 Workover/drilling 6,000 Venezuela
20 Workover/drilling 6,000 Venezuela
140 Medium Depth 10,000 Venezuela
158 Medium Depth 10,000 Venezuela
159 Medium Depth 12,000 Venezuela
132 Medium Depth 16,000 Ecuador
12 Deep (helicopter rig) 18,000 Ecuador
22 Deep (helicopter rig) 18,000 Bolivia
23 Deep (helicopter rig) 18,000 Ecuador
121 Deep 20,000 Colombia
45 Deep 26,000 Venezuela
82 Deep 26,000 Venezuela
83 Deep 26,000 Venezuela
117 Deep 26,000 Trinidad & Tobago
123 Deep 26,000 Bolivia
138 Deep 26,000 Ecuador
148 Deep 26,000 Venezuela
160 Deep 26,000 Venezuela
115 Very Deep 30,000 Venezuela
116 Very Deep 30,000 Venezuela
125 Very Deep 30,000 Colombia
113 Very Deep 30,000 Venezuela
128 Very Deep 30,000 Venezuela
129 Very Deep 30,000 Venezuela
133 Very Deep 30,000 Colombia
134 Very Deep 30,000 Colombia
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Rig

Designation  Classification

135
136
150
151
152
153
139

Very Deep
Very Deep
Very Deep
Very Deep
Super Deep
Super Deep

Registrant's Optimum Work ing Present
Depth in Fe et Location
30,000 Colombia
30,000 Colombia
30,000 Venezuela
30,000 Colombia
30,000 + Colombia
30,000 + Colombia
30,000 + Colombia

Super Deep

The following table sets forth information with pest to the utilization of the Registrant's intdioral drilling rigs for the periods indicated:

1991 1992

Number of rigs owned at end of
period
Average rig utilization rate
during period (1) 69%

25 30

ended September 30,

1993 1994 1995

29 29 35

69% 68% 88% 84%

(1) Arig is considered to be utilized when it gevated or being moved, assembled, or dismantlddrwrontract.

OIL AND GAS DIVISION

All of the Registrant's oil and gas operations hal#lings are domestic.

Crude Oil Sales

The Registrant's net sales of crude oil and coraterfer the fiscal years 1993 through 1995 are shioslow:

Year
1993
1994
1995

Average Sales

Average Lifting

Net Barrels Price per barrel Cost per Barrel
875,713 $17.58 $8.63
887,455 $14.83 $7.74
808,058 $16.37 $7.86
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Natural Gas Sales
The Registrant's net sales of natural and casinbgas for the three fiscal years 1993 through 85s follows:

Average Sales Av

erage Lifting
Year Net Mcf Price per Mcf C ost per Mcf
1993 28,478,530 $1.84 $0.3460
1994 26,627,776 $1.72 $0.3760
1995 26,421,434 $1.27 $0.3640

Following is a summary of the net wells drilled thye Registrant for the fiscal years ended Septe®®et 993, 1994, and 1995:

Exploratory Wells D evelopment Wells

1993 1994 1995 199 3 1994 1995
Productive 2.866 1.021 0.7 8.7 60 12.334 20.7695
Dry 1.393 1.436 2.596 2.8 58 0.233 3.2867

On September 30, 1995, the Registrant was in theegs of drilling or completing one gross or 0.1688wells.

Acreage Holdings

The Registrant's holdings of acreage under oilgasdleases, as of September 30, 1995, were aw$ollo
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Developed Acreage Undeveloped Acreage

Gross N et Gross Net

Alabama 480.00 11 2.21 146.00 18.12
Arkansas 3,508.23 1,91 5.90 -0- -0-
Colorado -0- -0- 1,000.00 260.28
Kansas 122,701.88 85,19 2.04 4,935.53 2,682.61
Louisiana 9,948.87 2,88 3.85 181,932.79 97,722.95
Mississippi 168.17 5 5.77 479.00 117.24
Montana 2,037.19 38 1.54 4,668.95 1,476.17
Nebraska 480.00 16 8.00 -0- -0-
Nevada -0- -0- 38,825.87 30,147.71
New Mexico 960.00 5 4.86 161.88 38.85
North Dakota -0- -0- 4,777.15 575.51
Oklahoma 143,366.70 47,71 9.39 32,499.74 16,214.27
Texas 90,392.22 42,01 7.94 12,976.71 6,988.05
wyoming -0- -0- 5,826.02 1,381.07

Total 374,043.26 180,50 1.50 288,229.64 157,622.83

Acreage is held under leases which expire in tlsemte of production at the end of a prescribedamgirterm, and is, therefore, subject to

fluctuation from year to year as new leases areiead, old leases expire, and other leases areedldo terminate by failure to pay annual
delay rentals.

Productive Wells

The Registrant's total gross and net productivdsvesl of September 30, 1995, were as follows:

Oil Wells Gas Wells
Gross Net Gross  Net
3,348 250 834 354

Additional information required by this item witkspect to the Registrant's oil and gas operatiansba found on pages I-12 through 1-23 of
Item 1. BUSINESS, and pages 28 through 30 of thgidRant's Annual Report to Shareholders for fid@85, "Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements" and "Note 12 Supplementamgrisial Information for Oil and Gas Producing Adtas."
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Estimates of oil and gas reserves, future net iee®rand present value of future net revenues awgtited by Southmayd & Associates, Inc.,
independent consultants, 6450 South Lewis Avenuie 220, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74136. Total oil and gs&rve estimates do not differ by
more than 5% from the total reserve estimates filgld any other federal authority or agency.

CHEMICAL OPERATIONS

The Registrant owns at Baytown, Texas, a chemieat pvhich manufactures mercaptans and sulfideaserprimarily as warning odorants
natural and liquefied petroleum gases. The plactipies approximately ten acres of a 30-acre trhétimthe Registrant owns. It is estimated
that the plant has an annual optimum design praatucepacity of 20,000,000 pounds of odorants ahdranercaptans; however, current
operating permits limit production to 10,000,000£000,000 pounds per year.

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS
See Item 1. BUSINESS, pages I-24 through |-26.
STOCK
At the end of fiscal 1995:

The Registrant owned 466,451 shares of the commoak sf Sun Company, Inc., and 329,053 shareseoSiim Company, Inc. preferred
series "A". The Registrant owned 625,000 sharé3rgk Energy Company, Inc.

The Registrant owned 1,600,000 shares of the constomk of Atwood Oceanics, Inc., a Houston, Texasell company engaged in offshore
contract drilling. The Registrant's ownership oivAbd is approximately 24%.

The Registrant owned 740,000 shares of the commeek sf Schlumberger, Ltd.
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The Registrant owned 240,000 shares of the commoak sf Phillips Petroleum Company, Inc.
The Registrant owned 225,000 shares of the commoak sf ONEOK.

The Registrant owned 395,000 shares of the commoak sf Liberty Bancorp, Inc., formerly Banks of #4America, Inc. Liberty Bancorp,
Inc., is a bank holding company which owns Libé8gnk and Trust Company of Tulsa, N.A., and Libéank and Trust Company of
Oklahoma City, N.A. The Registrant's ownership iifdrty Bancorp, Inc., is approximately 4%.

The Registrant also owned lesser holdings in seweénar publicly traded corporations.
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material legal proceedings pendininsgthe Registrant.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth the names and adéseoRegistrant's executive officers, togethehwail positions and offices held with the
Registrant by such executive officers. Officersaeeted to serve until the meeting of the BoarB®ioéctors following the next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and until their succes$ange been elected and have qualified or until thailier resignation or removal.
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W. H. Helmerich, Ill, 72 Director since 19
Chairman of the Board since December 1,
Officer from Dece
1989; and Preside
December 11, 1987

Director since
President and Chi
December 6, 1989;
Operating Officer
Executive Vice Pr
Vice President fr
of W. H. Helmeric

Hans Helmerich, 37

Allen S. Braumiller, 61
President

Appointed Vice P

George S. Dotson, 54 Director since Ma
President, Drilli
President and Chi
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on February 14, 1

Douglas E. Fears, 46
Vice President

Appointed Vice Pr
11, 1988, prior t
Auditor from June

Steven R. Mackey, 44
Vice President and
Secretary

Appointed Secreta
President on Mar
Counsel on Januar
was Associate Gen
1986

James L. Payne, 56
Vice President

Appointed Vice Pr
September 4, 1991
Vice President an
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9, 1985

Steven R. Shaw, 44
Vice President
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Gordon K. Helm, 42
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1993; Manager of
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Planning for Memo
1988

1-35

49; Chairman of the Board
1960; Chief Executive

mber 1, 1960 to December 6,
nt from December 1, 1960 to

March 4, 1987; appointed

ef Executive Officer on
President and Chief

from December 11, 1987;
esident from March 13, 1987;
om June 15, 1985; son

h, 1ll, Chairman

resident, Exploration, in 1977

rch 7, 1990; appointed Vice
ng, in 1977 and appointed
ef Operating Officer of
International Drilling Co.
977

esident, Finance, on March
o which he was Internal
30, 1986

ry on March 7, 1990; Vice

ch 11, 1988; and General

y 1, 1988, prior to which he
eral Counsel from January 1,

esident, Real Estate, on

; prior to that date he was
d General Manager of
Properties, Inc., from May

President, Production, on

Officer of the Registrant;

ler effective December 10,
Internal Audit from September
| Controller for Memorex

from 1989; and Manager of
rex Telex Corporation from



PART Il
Item 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AN D RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS

The principal market on which the Registrant's camrstock is traded is the New York Stock Exchafdpe high and low sale prices per
share for the common stock for each quarterly plediaring the past two fiscal years as reportetiénNY SE - Composite Transaction
guotations follow:

1994 1995
Quarter High Low High Low
First 34 1/2 26 1/2 311/4 255/8
Second 30 26 271/2  241/2
Third 27 1/8 251/8 31 26 5/8
Fourth 28 1/8 255/8 30 27 5/8

The Registrant paid quarterly cash dividends duttiregpast two years as shown in the following table

Paid per Share Total Payment
Fiscal F iscal
Quarter 1994 1995 1994 1995
First $0.120 $0.125 $2,956,498 $3,089,758
Second 0.120 0.125 2,960,098 3,087,958
Third 0.120 0.125 2,960,314 3,092,973
Fourth 0.125 0.125 3,087,902 3,094,813

The Registrant paid a cash dividend of $0.125 pareson December 1, 1995, to shareholders of remoidovember 15, 1995. Payment of
future dividends will depend on earnings and ofhetors.

As of December 15, 1995, there were 1,656 recolden® of the Registrant's common stock as listethbytransfer agent's records.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Five-year Su mmary of Selected Financial Data

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995
Sales, operating,
and other revenues $213,946  $239,700 $315,097 $329,001  $325,776
Income from con-
tinuing operations 21,241 10,849 24,550 20,971 9,751
Income from con-
tinuing operations
per common share 0.88 0.45 1.01 0.86 0.40
Total assets 575,168 585,504 610,935 624,827 710,165
Long-term debt 5,693 8,339 3,600 -0- -0-
Cash dividends
declared per
common share 0.46 0.47 0.48 0.49 0.50

Registrant adopted Financial Accounting Standamksr @ Statement of Financial Accounting Standards12a during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 1995 which resulted in an impairment chaof20,000,000 to Registrant's oil and gas divigiod $2,000,000 to its real estate divis
These non-cash, naeeurring charges reduced income from continuingrajpons for the quarter and fiscal year by 13.fanidollars ($0.5!
per share).

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Information required by this item may be found @yes 12 through 16, Management's Discussion & Aigbf Results of Operations and
Financial Condition, in the Registrant's Annual Bepo Shareholders for fiscal 1995, which is inmmmated herein by reference.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Information required by this item may be found @ges 17 through 30 in the Registrant's Annual Reép@hareholders for fiscal 1995,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The required information regarding the change igifeant's certifying accountant was previouslyorégd in a Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiom\pril 7, 1994.
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PART 1lI
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

Information required under this item with respecbirectors and with respect to delinquent fileusguant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is
incorporated by reference from the Registrant'dife Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting aé&holders to be held March 6, 1996,
to be filed with the Commission not later than H2@'s after September 30, 1995. See pages |-34dihieB5 for information covering the
Registrant's Executive Officers.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information is incorporated by reference frilra Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement forAlmaiual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held March 6, 1996, to be filed with the Commissimmt later than 120 days after September 30, 1995.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

This information is incorporated by reference frilra Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement forAlmaiual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held March 6, 1996, to be filed with the Commissim later than 120 days after September 30, 1995.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

This information is incorporated by reference frilra Registrant's definitive Proxy Statement forAlmaiual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held March 6, 1996, to be filed with the Commissim later than 120 days after September 30, 1995.
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PART IV

Item 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Document List

1. The financial statements called for by Item&iacorporated herein by reference from the Remjiss Annual Report to Shareholders for

fiscal 1995.

2. The Report of Independent Public Accountant§ioancial Statements and Financial Statement Sébeflor the fiscal year ended

September 30, 1993, is filed as a part of this Form

3. Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Exhibit Number:

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporati
the Registrant are incorporated her
10-K to the Securities and Exchange

3.2  By-Laws of the Registrant are incor
Report on Form 10-K to the Securiti

4.1  Rights Agreement dated as of Januar
Bank of Boston is incorporated here
30, 1986.

4.2  Amendment to Rights Agreement dated
Liberty National Bank and Trust Com
the Registrant's Form 8, Amendment

10.1 Incentive Stock Option Plan is inco
Registrant's Registration Statement

on and Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorpo
ein by reference from the Registrant's Annual Repor
Commission for fiscal 1987.

porated herein by reference from the Registrant's A
es and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1990.

y 21, 1986, between the Registrant and The First Na
in by reference to the Registrant's Form 8-A dated

as of December 5, 1990, between the Registrant and
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10.3

10.4
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10.6

10.7

13.

Consulting Services Agreement betwe
January 1, 1990, as amended, is inc
Report on Form 10-K to the Securiti

Restricted Stock Plan for Senior Ex
by reference to Exhibit "A" to the

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agre
Helmerich & Payne, Inc., together w
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Supplemental Retirement Income Plan
incorporated herein by reference fr
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Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1990 Stock
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Supplemental Savings Plan for Salar
herein by reference from Registrant
Commission for fiscal 1993.

The Registrant's Annual Report to S
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Financial Data Schedule.
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(b) Report on Form 8-K
No reports on Form-K were filed during the fourth quarter of the i$gear ended September 30, 1995.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 1993
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Helnéch & Payne, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheetlofi¢tich & Payne, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) anbsidiaries as of September 30,
1993, and the related consolidated statementscofiie, shareholders' equity and cash flows for ##& then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compangisagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generalbepted auditing standards. Those standardsegtat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethenthedial statements are free of material misstatemd@naudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis@lssn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememiell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming aniop on the basic financial statements takenwabale. The schedules listed in Item 14
(a) are presented for purposes of complying wighSkcurities and Exchange Commission's rules andarpart of the basic financial
statements. The information in these schedule$ Ssmtember 30, 1993, and for the year then erfid; been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic fir@ratatements and, in our opinion, fairly statalirmaterial respects the financial data
required to be set forth therein in relation to biasic financial statements taken as a whole.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Helmerich & Payne,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 1993thencksults of their operations and their caswglfor the year then ended, in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
November 16, 199
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigsthas duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
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(Chief Executive Officer)
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EXHIBIT 13

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. ANNUAL REPORT FOR 1995

HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994
Revenues $ 325,776,000 $ 329,001,000
Net Income $ 9,751,000 $ 24,971,000
Earnings Per Share $ .40 $ 1.02
Dividends Paid Per Share $ .50 $ .485
Capital Expenditures $ 111,776,000 $ 105,883,000
Total Assets $ 710,165,000 $ 624,827,000

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. IS A DIVERSIFIED, ENERGY-ORENTED COMPANY ENGAGED IN CONTRACT DRILLING, OIL
AND GAS EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION, CHEMICALS MANURCTURING, AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT AND
MANAGEMENT. THE COMPANY ALSO HOLDS SUBSTANTIAL EQUTY INVESTMENTS IN SEVERAL OTHER PUBLICLY
OWNED CORPORATIONS.



PRESIDENT'S LETTER

To the Co-owners of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
In our fast paced lives, we easily forget to pdosg enough to reflect on our significant milestene

The Company's celebration of its 75th year annargrprovided such an opportunity during 1995. Tiearie of that celebration is captured
Peter Drucker when he suggests that people arergp&uy's only strategic asset. From the first ddykeopartnership between my grandfa
and Bill Payne, the Company has been built on theeiple that success springs from the charactdrcampetency of its people.

The acceleration of change in today's world anctttadlenge of generating growth and economic retinra stagnate energy industry only
to underscore that our future will be measured dnyability to carry forward the successful combioatof talent and integrity characteristic
the people that have served the Company durirfgsts/5 years.

On the first score, | am convinced we will contirtagecruit and develop a team with superior skiligl training. In fact, today we are stror
than ever and are building a roster loaded witkntahs we face the opportunities ahead.

But talent is not enough. It must be teamed togetlith the inner qualities of integrity and trustitltness.

This elusive quality of heart is more a matter afydhabit than a slogan or catch phrase. It isscopted by company policy, but from deep
inside, a kind of internal reflex of character. lgandfather was fond of saying that you must alwases good people and that life was just
too short to do business with the wrong people.r@weyears, our nation has produced a goodnesgeragth of character in its people that
has fueled the greatest economy and quality otlifer before in all of history.
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Looking forward, does de Tocqueville's classic obston that America's greatness is secured framwilispring of her basic goodness still
hold true for our children? In his tour across Aiter Colin Powell lamented that our society had itsssense of shame. Our young peopl¢
paying a terrible price. We lead the industrializeatid in illegitimate births, abortions, teenaggcgde, and violent crime while ranking at the
bottom in our elementary and secondary school aehient scores.

By its nature, the government cannot impart goosiresd displacing parental responsibility with picéil compassion is doomed to fail. We
see our prisons and welfare rolls dominated byfdtteerless. If a young person's core principlesgoutiness of heart are nurtured from early
childhood, shaped and cultivated within familid®rt every business person and citizen has a stdkeir success. Strong families drive our
future.

Scripture speaks of turning the hearts of the fathethe children and an African proverb saysr#iging of a child is so important that it ta
an entire village to do it.

While the government can play a role by reformirejfare and reducing the crushing tax burden, oahgpts, families, relatives, pastors,
troop leaders, coaches, and teachers can buildafaguard our nation's most strategic asset, digreh.

Sincerely,

Hans Helmerich December 15, 1995 President



DRILLING HELMERICH & PAYNE INTERNATIONAL DRILLING C O.

SUMMARY At the close of 1995, Helmerich & Paynedmational Drilling Co. owned 30 land rigs and Tfsloore platform rigs in the
United States, and 35 land rigs in the countriegefezuela (18), Colombia (10), Ecuador (4), Bali{2), and Trinidad (1). Financial results
in 1995 improved considerably over 1994 with reveshand pre-tax operating profit increasing 11 éhg@e&rcent, respectively.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS The Company has had opienag in South America since the 1950's and todayélion ranks among t
most active contract drilling arenas in the woAdotal of nine rigs were moved to South Americd 895, three of which were deployed to
Colombia for the Cusiana/Cupiagua development aperay BP Exploration, and two rigs were moved tdiBa for Exxon and Total. Four
rigs were sent to Venezuela and one more was ¢a abthe close of the fiscal year. For the firsietin several decades, Venezuela is
encouraging outside investment to develop its ficadil and gas resources. This change in poliogxigected to stimulate additional demand
for drilling services in the future.

DOMESTIC OPERATIONS Land rig utilization average8l jercent in 1995, compared with 66 percent theipus year. An average of five
more rigs worked throughout the year than in 1@®4marily due to the Company's acquisition of ENS€@bmestic land drilling business in
the third quarter of last year.

Offshore platform activity declined in 1995, witlo@pany-owned rigs averaging 66 percent utilizatompared with 79 percent in 1994.
Five rigs worked continually in the Gulf of Mexiemd two rigs offshore California. The Company
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also provided labor and other services for two Exganed platform rigs located offshore California.

In the spring of 1995, Helmerich & Payne InternaéibDrilling Co. was awarded a contract to deskgrild, and operate an offshore platform
rig for Shell Offshore Inc.'s (SOI) Mars tensiog lgatform (TLP) in the Gulf of Mexico. The Marsgpect, considered by many to be the
largest discovery in the Gulf of Mexico in morenh20 years, is scheduled to begin in the sprint986 and will be set at a water depth
exceeding 2,900 feet. The Company was also awardigtter of intent to build a similar rig for SORam-Powell project which is scheduled
to begin in 1997. The Ram- Powell TLP will be sed avater depth of approximately 3,200 feet. Dedpmndevelopments like these will be
pivotal to the future of the offshore oil and gadustry, and the Company is well positioned toipigdte at the forefront of this trend.

OUTLOOK Four points stand out among the myriadéssand challenges facing the Company and this indisrst, safety and the
prevention of accidents is and will continue toaberucial objective. Second, the organizationaictire needs to have the agility to respond
effectively in periods of both high and low demamdird, as customers continue to hone their orgditins to achieve better efficiency and
productivity, this will create opportunities formmactors to provide additional services. Finadlgch of these three points is contributing tc
formation of alliances between operators, contractand other service companies. The Company dirlgand participating in several of
these relationships, and is committed to furthdéra@eing its ability to add value to the customer.
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EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

SUMMARY Helmerich & Payne, Inc. explores for, demg$, and acquires oil and natural gas reservesaphnin the states of Oklahoma,
Kansas, Texas, and Louisiana. Additionally, the @any provides natural gas marketing services thratsgvholly-owned subsidiary,
Helmerich & Payne Energy Services, Inc. At year;éhd Company reported proved reserves of appragigna80 billion cubic feet (Bcf) of
natural gas and 6.3 million barrels of oil. Ressrwere approximately 290.7 Bcf and 6.7 million kéin 1994,

PRODUCTION OVERVIEW Natural gas production averag@¢387 thousand cubic feet (Mcf) per day in 19@Bnpared with a 72,953 M
per day average in 1994. The average price recéivathtural gas fell by 45 cents per Mcf to $1i27.995, reducing natural gas revenue by
25 percent for the year. Oil production averag@d 2 barrels per day compared with 2,431 barrel®Bd. The average price received per
barrel of oil increased to $16.37 per barrel in3,98om $14.83 the previous year.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW Effective in 1995, the Companylapted Statement of Financial Accounting StandBiais121 (SFAS 121)
"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetghich resulted in a $20 million non-cash chamy@rte-tax operating profit. Under
SFAS 121, the Company measures impairment to dilgas assets on a field-by-field basis, rather tsing a single cost center. This
impairment charge, coupled with the collapse ofirsdtgas prices, had a significant negative impadhe year's financial results.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

OilRevenue . ............... $13,227 $13,161 $15,392
Natural Gas Revenue . . .......... 33,851 45,261 52,446
Pre-tax Operating Profit (Loss) . ... .. (23,961) 3,245 19,495
Depreciation and Depletion ........ 19,913 19,523 18,294
SFAS 121 Impairment . . .. ........ 19,982 -- --
Capital Expenditures . .......... 20,956 45,809 25,551

DRILLING AND EXPLORATION The Company participated the drilling of 59 (27.4 net) wells in 1995, 481(1 net) of which were
development wells, and 13

(3.3 net) were classified as exploratory wellsofat of 42 wells (21.5 net)

were productive and 17 (5.9 net) wells were drnehol

During 1995, the Company increased its investnmeeiploration prospects. The Company had workitey@sts in several high profile, yet
unsuccessful wells including the Sealind 1-11 indiing, and the Shadyside A-1 and the Miami FeeNn.Louisiana. In the Louisiana
Austin Chalk, the Company is exchanging or pooinge of its acreage on the western side of thispaat for overriding royalties or carried
interests in exploratory drilling efforts. The Coamy intends to minimize its financial exposurehe éxploratory phase of this prospect, w
retaining an acreage position for potential develept opportunities.

OUTLOOK In September of 1995, the Company restmactits Exploration and Production Division arogabgraphically focused teams.
Each team will review and develop drilling, workoyand acquisition prospects for a specific regiime objective is to enhance performance
by refocusing on the Company's strengths in keyggahic regions.



REAL ESTATE HELMERICH & PAYNE PROPERTIES, INC.

SUMMARY The purchase of Utica Square Shopping Qeinté964 marked the beginning of the Company'wadhvolvement in Tulsa's
commercial real estate market. Through its whoiknred subsidiary, Helmerich & Payne Properties,, line Company owns 1,652,311

square feet of leasable space and approximateha@®s of undeveloped land. An increase in indaldeasing activity helped move the
Company's occupancy level from an average of 88ameiin 1994, to 87 percent in 1995.

Pretax operating profit fell sharply in 1995, as then@pany adopted Statement of Financial Accountimg@irds No. 121 (SFAS 121) wh
resulted in a write-down in the book value of tvaorbination office/warehouse properties acquireth@émid-1980's.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

Gross Revenues . .......... $ 7,570 $7,803 $7,630
Pre-Tax Operating Profit . . . . .. 2,157 4,460 4,149
Depreciation Expense .. ... ... 1,623 1,624 1,679
SFAS 121 Impairment . ....... 2,000 - -
Capital Expenditures . .. ..... 907 916 458
Year-End Book Value ........ 23,353 26,065 27,006
Average Occupancy ......... 87% 83% 86%

UTICA SQUARE SHOPPING CENTER With its unique outdaesign spread over 30 landscaped acres, Uticar&@hopping Center is t
cornerstone of the Company's real estate portésitha landmark in the Tulsa community. Nearly 7@a@nts and restaurants reside at Utica
Square including Ann Taylor, Banana Republic, ThenBy Store, Miss Jackson's, The Limited, PieraksS-ifth Avenue and Williams-
Sonoma.



INDUSTRIAL PROPERTIES The Company's industrial resate holdings consist of two bulk warehouse ldgweents encompassing
697,500 square feet and four combination officedliause developments with a total of 367,234 sdiegte All of the Company's properties
are located in the southeastern section of Tulexjmpate to major transportation arteries. Duri®§4, the Company reorganized its
marketing strategy for these properties by outsogrieasing activities to a local broker specialigin industrial properties. The additional
exposure derived from this effort, combined withimproved leasing climate, helped increase occupfmm 77 percent at the end of 1994,
to 90 percent at the close of 1995.

SUMMARY OF PROPERTY OWNED

Property Name D escription Square Feet
Utica Square Shopping Center U pscale Retail 405,709
Utica Square Offices and Medical Center P rofessional Offices 94,969
Plaza Office Building C orporate Offices 86,899
Space Center | ndustrial Warehouses 495,000
Space Center East | ndustrial Warehouses 202,500
Tandem Business Park (0] ffice/Warehouse Complex 88,084
Tulsa Business Park (0] ffice/Warehouse Complex 204,600
Maxim Center (0] ffice/Warehouse Complex 40,800
Maxim Place O ffice/Warehouse Complex 33,750
Southpark U ndeveloped 257 Acres --

T otal Square Feet 1,652,311

OUTLOOK There are a number of positive signs inThisa economy which should help to continue theogltion of excess commercial
space into the next year. Tulsa was the benefighspme significant expansion and relocation decssin 1995 and the aviation industry,
one of the area's largest employers, appears ¢ojoging a modest recovery. While a developmennbaonot anticipated anytime soon, the
Company's property holdings are well positionethanmarket to benefit from future growth of the Saibrea.
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CHEMICALS NATURAL GAS ODORIZING, INC.

SUMMARY Natural Gas Odorizing, Inc. (NGO), is adi#éag producer of mercaptan-based chemicals useduasng agents in natural and
liquified petroleum gas (LPG). In most North Ameicjurisdictions natural gas and LPG odorizatioretguired by law before the fuels car
sold for commercial or residential purposes. Omalker scale, NGO produces similarly composed petslwhich are used as sulfides or feed
stock in other processes within the chemical afiding industries.

The Company's Baytown, Texas, plant neighbors awizxefinery from which the Company receives itg kaw materials, hydrogen sulfide
and olefins. Products are shipped in Company-owaekl trucks or in returnable or non-returnableraydirs to a customer base primarily
made up of natural gas utilities and LPG distridnittompanies. NGO competes with two other supplietisis small but highly competitive
market. Approximately nine percent of NGO's salme from outside of North America in 1995, compaséth eight percent in 1994,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)
Gross Revenues ............... $ 19,055 $ 18,849 $ 14,374
Pre-Tax Operating Profit .......... 6,221 5,994 3,665
Depreciation Expense ............ 672 654 594
Capital Expenditures ............ 859 619 630
Pounds of Product Sold . .......... 7,670 8,071 7,930

Total revenue and operating profit finished at rddevels for the respective sixth and fifth congae years in 1995. Product price increases
were the major reason for improved results oveiptst three years.

During 1995, an investment banking firm was retditeeadvise the Company regarding the potential giNatural Gas Odorizing, Inc.

10



REVENUES AND INCOME BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 3 0, 1995 1994 1

(in thousands)
SALES AND OTHER REVENUES:

Contract Drilling - Domestic ......... . $ 93,890 $ 86,521 $ 60
Contract Drilling - International . ..... . 110,695 98,111 89
Total Contract Drilling Division . . ... . 204,585 184,632 149
Exploration and Production .......... . 47,986 58,884 69
Natural Gas Marketing ............ . 35,301 51,889 63
Total Oil and Gas Division .......... . 83,287 110,773 133
Chemical Division .............. . 19,055 18,849 14
Real Estate Division ............. . 7,570 7,803 7
Investments and Other Income ......... . 11,279 6,944 9
Total Revenues ................. . $325,776 $329,001 $315

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS):

Contract Drilling - Domestic ......... . $ 7,127 $ 5,874 $
Contract Drilling - International . ..... . 21,110 14,645 15
Total Contract Drilling Division .. ... . 28,237 20,519 15
Exploration and Production .......... . (23,961) 3,245 19
Natural Gas Marketing ............ . 1,892 1,525
Total Oil and Gas Division ........ . (22,069) 4,770 20
Chemical Division .............. . 6,221 5,994 3
Real Estate Division ............. . 2,157 4,460 4
Total Operating Profit .......... . 14,546 35,743 43
OTHER:
Miscellaneous operating ........... . (1,624) (1,292)
Income from investments . .......... . 10,846 6,303 9
General corporate expense .......... . (8,801) (8,908) 6
Interestexpense ............... . (407) (385)
Corporate depreciation ............ . (851) (1,162)
Total Other ................ . (837) (5,444)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES, EQUITY IN INCOME
(LOSS) OF AFFILIATE, AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE: . ........ . $ 13,709 $ 30,299 $43

Note: This schedule is an integral part of Not€dadges 2-28) of the financial statements that follow.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s net income for 1995 wag%$1,000 ($0.40 per share), compared with netniecof $24,971,000 ($1.02 per share)
in 1994, and $24,550,000 ($1.01 per share) in 18@8income in 1995 includes a non-cash, non- regicharge of $13,600,000 ($0.55 per
share) as a result of the Company's adoption ¢é®tnt of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) M., Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets toisposed Of. Results for 1994 included $4 mill{$0.16 per share) of income due to a
one-time reduction in the Company's deferred inctares from the cumulative effect of adopting SM¥& 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes.

Included in the Company's net income, but not eeldd its operations, were after-tax gains fromsile of investment securities of
$3,481,000 ($0.14 per share) in 1995, and $1,780$0.07 per share) in 1993. Also included was@hmpany's portion of income or losses
of its equity affiliate, Atwood Oceanics, Inc., whiwas $0.04 per share of income in both 1995 88d,1and a loss of $0.02 per share in
1993.

Company revenues declined slightly to $325,776j80®95, from $329,001,000 in 1994, and $315,097j60L993. Although contract

drilling revenues rose by 11 percent this past,yahand gas division revenues declined by alni2&spercent, primarily due to lower natural
gas prices and production volumes. Total revenaee@sed by 4 percent from 1993 to 1994, as a rekintreases in domestic drilling (43
percent), international drilling (9 percent), afeémical (31 percent) segments. Revenues from eagdarand production (16 percent
decrease) and natural gas marketing (19 percereai®) also fell appreciably in 1994 as oil andirgigas prices and natural gas production
volume declined. Total revenues for 1996 are exguett be slightly higher than for 1995 due to iasesd activity in international contract
drilling operations.

Revenues from investments rose to $10,846,00098,1&fter declining to $6,303,000 in 1994, from($®,000 in 1993. Gains from the sale
of investment securities were $5,697,000 in 199243000 in 1994 and $2,914,000 in 1993. Dividerbine was stable during 1995, 1994
and 1993, but interest income steadily decreasedstsbalances and interest rates generally dddlineng these periods.
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Costs and expenses in 1995 were $312,067,000,r6érpef total revenues, compared with 91 peraedd4, and 86 percent in 1993. Total
costs for 1995 were abnormally high due to the &dowf SFAS No. 121 which resulted in a total peg-impairment charge of $22,000,000
recorded as additional depreciation, depletion,andrtization. Operating costs as a percentage&fting revenues declined in 1995 to
1993 levels (64 percent) after rising slightly ®ercent in 1994. The operating cost percentaggesslightly in 1994 because of increased
activity in the lower margin domestic land drillibgisiness and an increase in operating expensis international contract drilling busine

General and administrative expenses of $8,801/00095 were down slightly from $8,908,000 in 1984d up significantly from $6,820,000
in 1993. The increase in 1994 was due primarilijntoeased costs of employee healthcare benefitstaradlesser degree, a net increase in
pension expense. It is anticipated that 1996 géaecrhadministrative expenses will increase sligfrbm 1995.

Income tax expense, as a percentage ofgeéacome, rose to 37 percent in 1995, from 34 @eatrin 1994. The effective tax rate for 1994
lower because of the usage of foreign tax credityfarwards, tight sands tax credits, and a reducih Venezuelan taxes as a result of the
monetary correction tax law enacted there. Thectffe tax rate was 42 percent in 1993, prior toghactment of the monetary correction tax
law in Venezuela.

CONTRACT DRILLING DIVISION revenues increased by fiércent this year, following a 23 percent incrfase 1993 to 1994. Domestic
drilling operating profit increased to $7,127,000L095, from $5,874,000 in 1994 and $122,000 iB1#%om 1993 to 1994, the Company's
U.S. offshore platform rig business improved siigaifitly, thereby helping boost revenue and incdinging that time and continuing into
1995, the land rig operations also improved sulisthn aided by the 1994 purchase of Ensco's sdettas land rig operations. However, i
anticipated that 1996 domestic revenues and inagitheot materially change from 1995 levels.

International revenues climbed to $110,695,0009@5] from $98,111,000 in 1994, and $89,618,00M®81 Operating profit for the
international contract drilling sector improved 4 percent to $21,110,000 for 1995, compared with&45,000 in 1994 and $15,281,000 in
1993. Revenues and profit margins in the Compdmganost active international operations, Venezagld Colombia, improved
significantly in 1995. The Company sent four negsrio Venezuela and three to Colombia, bringingoignts in those countries to 18 and
respectively. The Company anticipates its operating
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profit from international operations will improverfthe coming year based on higher activity lewelsoth Colombia and Venezuela.

In 1994, the Venzuelan government fixed the exchaatg which resulted in exchange losses for thepgamy totaling approximately
$2,764,000. During fiscal 1995, the currency exdearates remained fixed, however, the Company'stipg costs increased due to
hyperinflation in the Venezuelan economy. Thesééigosts were partially offset by the purchaseuofency at market rates using Brady
Bonds. During the first week of December 1995,gbeernment reset the exchange rate, increasingnit 170 Bolivars to 290 Bolivars to the
U.S. dollar. It is estimated that the Company wilt experience a material loss, if any, from trégaluation. It is uncertain when the
government will reset the exchange rate againhmiCompany does not expect losses from futureutticins in the exchange rate during
1996 to be material. The Company will continue tiochase Brady Bonds to help offset a portion of fayre exchange losses or higher
operating costs as a result of inflation.

OIL AND GAS DIVISION revenues and operating prdfdve declined over the past two years due to afisigmt decrease in natural gas
prices from $1.84 per Mcf in 1993, to $1.72 in 180w $1.27 in 1995. Natural gas production voluaiss declined over the same period of
time from approximately 78 milion cubic feet a ddymcf/d) in 1993, to 73 Mmcf/d in 1994, and 72.4 Mifd in 1995. During 1995, the
Company elected to adopt SFAS No. 121, resultirg$19,982,000 charge to the Oil and Gas Division.

Because of the decline in natural gas volumes aicd revenues fell from $69,795,000 in 1993,36,884,000 in 1994, and to $47,986,000
in 1995. Operating profit over the same periodffeiin $19,495,000 in 1993, to $3,245,000 in 199 #@ a loss of $23,961,000 in 1995,
which includes the $19,982,000 charge discussedealiiry-hole and abandonment charges for the dilgas division rose from $6,938,000
in 1993, to $8,932,000 in 1994, and to $8,981,00D995. Abandonment charges in 1994 increasedfisianily due to the reduction in the
carrying value of the Company's leasehold positiaits Austin Chalk prospect in south central Laaig. Dry-hole expense was up in 1995
due to increased exploratory activity during tharye

A lawsuit was filed in an Oklahoma state court iovmber of 1995 against Helmerich & Payne, Incwlivich five named plaintiffs, on
behalf of themselves and other unnamed plaintifs,demanding their royalty share of a gas congeitiement. The plaintiffs are attempting
to certify a class which would contain certaintod Company's lessors and certain other mineral mwmeo own an interest in wells covered
by such gas contract settlement. The Company istendigorously defend this lawsuit. However, dextified class is awarded a royalty
share of the gas contract settlement, then anyaweld could have a material impact
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on income from continuing operations for the apgilie quarter. Management believes that any suchdasteuld not exceed approximately
$2.7 million.

Natural gas marketing revenues, which are primaeigived from selling natural gas produced by ottwnpanies (third party), declined
$35,301,000 in 1995, from $51,889,000 in 1994, $618,858,000 in 1993. Operating profit was $1,892,i001995, $1,525,000 in 1994, and
$667,000 in 1993. The Company's approach has beagsetthe existing capacity of its personnel andifies to derive additional profit from
matching its customers with third party producehemwthe marketing situation is not conducive fer$hle of the Company's own natural (
It is expected that competition will continue tmit fees and premiums for third party natural gales Therefore, the Company does not
anticipate significant growth in revenue and incdnoen third party sales in the coming year.

CHEMICAL DIVISION revenues increased by 1 percenni 1994 to 1995 to $19,055,000, and by 31 peiftent 1993 to 1994. Operating
profit increased by 4 percent from 1994 to 199%6¢221,000, and by 64 percent from 1993 to 199%dirst price increases and improved
margins accounted for the significant rise in rex@nand income in 1994. Growth flattened durings1&8 prices remained stable. The
Company has engaged an investment banking firthéopurpose of advising the Company regarding ttergial sale of its chemical
operations in 1996. Specialty chemical companigeapto be valued at premium prices at this tintethe Company believes that, given an
attractive price, the timing may be appropriatedb the Division.

REAL ESTATE DIVISION revenues for 1994 were up, qmared to 1995 and 1993, due to the sale of a gaatkel of land which resulted in
a $450,000 gain. Operating profit for 1995 was dagmificantly due to a $2,000,000 charge to twapgrties in connection with the
adoption of SFAS No. 121. However, occupancy f@5l&as slightly improved and it is anticipated tte division will return to normal
levels of revenues and income during 1996.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Company has maintained a very strong balareet $r many years with current ratios above 1d3He last three years and long-term
debt to total capitalization remaining below 2 maricfor that same period. During 1995, the Compsgyed a three-year agreement with a
syndicate of banks for a line of credit totalind$illion. At year end, $21,700,000 had been boadwnder the facility. This was the first
time the Company had gone to outside sources fotatdunding since the early 1980's. Capital exjpieemes for the last two years were over
$100 million and exceeded the funds generatedrialiyr It is anticipated that during 1996 the capéxpenditures will again exceed $100
million and that additional borrowings will be nesary to fund those expenditures. Cash flow praltdeoperating activities totaled
$88,572,000 for 1995, $79,909,000 for 1994, andGIR4000 for 1993. It is
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anticipated that cash generated by operating &etwvill increase again during the coming year gtuenprovement in rig utilization and
profitability in South America. As it did in 1993%1d 1995, the Company may choose to sell a portiéis avestment portfolio to aid in the
funding of capital expenditures. Capital expenditupudgeted for 1996 include continued exploradioth development drilling activities,
major offshore platform rig construction projeats Gulf of Mexico operations, and the completiortted Company's investment in a joint
venture with its equity affiliate, Atwood Oceanidhe joint venture will construct a new generatidfshore platform rig for work offshore
Australia.

The Company manages a large portfolio of marketsdterrities which had a cost basis of $87,299,0@®:ptember 30, 1995, and a total
market value at that time of $158,201,000, inclgdis investment in Atwood. During 1995, the Compadopted SFAS No. 115, Account
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Secesitwhich resulted in the balance sheet adjusttoentirket values for investments in
companies owned less than 20 percent. Accordirgligferred tax estimate was added to deferred teder the liability section and the net
unrealized holding gains were reflected in the shalders' equity section of the balance sheet.igutb95, the Company paid a dividend of
$.50 per share which represented the 24th consecqygtiar of dividend increases.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD BY THE COMPANY

Number of
September 30, 1 995 Shares Book Value Market Value

(in thousands,except
share amounts)

Schlumberger, Ltd. ................ . 740,000 $ 23,511 $ 48 378
Atwood Oceanics, Inc. . .. ............ . 1,600,000 22,495 32 ,100
Sun Company,Inc. ................. . 466,451 5,742 12 ,011
SunCompany PFDA................. . 329,053 3,192 9 172
Phillips Petroleum Company ............ . 240,000 5,976 7 ,800
Liberty Bancorp. ................. . 395,000 5,743 14 ,516
Oryx Energy Company . . .............. . 625,000 6,032 8 ,125
oneok.......... ... . 225,000 2,751 5 231
Other....................... 11,857 20 ,868

Total ................. . $ 87,299 $ 158 ,201
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 19 93

(in thousands,
except per share amounts)

REVENUES:

Sales and other operating revenues . . . ... . $ 314,930 $ 322,698 $ 306 ,047

Income from investments . .......... . 10,846 6,303 9 ,050

325,776 329,001 315 ,097

COSTS AND EXPENSES:

Operatingcosts ............... . 200,240 213,427 194 ,856

Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . . . 77,115 50,068 48 ,609

Dry holes and abandonments .......... . 10,096 10,369 6 ,893

Taxes, other than income taxes ........ . 15,408 15,545 13 , 763

General and administrative . ......... . 8,801 8,908 6 ,820

Interest . .......... .. .. ... . 407 385 925

312,067 298,702 271 ,866

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES, EQUITY IN INCOME

(LOSS) OF AFFILIATE AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ........ . 13,709 30,299 43 231
INCOME TAXEXPENSE ................ . 5,044 10,232 18 279
EQUITY IN INCOME (LOSS) OF AFFILIATE,

net ofincome taxes ............. . 1,086 904 (402)
INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ............. . 9,751 20,971 24 ,550
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE . -- 4,000 -
NETINCOME .................... . $ 9,751 $ 24,971 $ 24 ,550
PER COMMON SHARE:
INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ............. . $ 40 $ 86 $ 1.01
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE . - .16 -
NETINCOME .................... . $ 40 $ 102 $ 1.01
AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING . . ....... . 24,536 24,416 24 ,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
L]

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Assets
September 30, 1995 199 4
(in thousands)

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents .......... ... $ 19,661 $ 29 447
Short-term investments . ........... ..., 8,989 8 ,997
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $489 and $ 1,480 ........ 59,314 59 ,897
Inventories ................. . 21,313 20 ,995
Prepaid expenses and other .......... ... .. ..., 5,717 3 ,603
Total currentassets ........... ... 114,994 122 ,939
INVESTMENTS .. ... oo 156,908 87 414

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cost:

Contract drilling equipment . ........ ... ... 501,682 444 432
Oil and gas properties ............ ... ... 392,806 389 ,100
Real estate properties ............ ... 46,642 47 827
Other .............o oo 69,592 61 743
1,010,722 943 ,102

Less--Accumulated depreciation, depletion and a mortization . . ... 586,960 542 ,451
Net property, plant and equipment ..... ... .. 423,762 400 ,651
OTHERASSETS ... ... 14,501 13 ,823
TOTALASSETS . ..o $ 710,165 $624 ,827

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable ...............
Accrued liabilites .............
Notes payable ................

Total current liabilities . ......

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Deferred income taxes ............
Other ....................

Total noncurrent liabilities . .. ...

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common stock, $.10 par value, 80,000,000 shares
26,764,476 sharesissued ..........

Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shares
no sharesissued ..............

Additional paid-in capital ..........

Net unrealized holding gains .........

Retained earnings ..............

Less treasury stock, 1,999,856 shares in 1995 a
in 1994, atcost ..............

Total shareholders' equity .......

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY . ...

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.

September 30, 1995

(in thousands)

........... 21,529 24
........... 21,700 -
........... 69,611 46
........... 66,047 44
........... 12,072 9
........... 78,119 53
authorized,

........... 2,677 2
authorized,

R 48436 48
........... 38,004

584,809 547

19

,645
,056

, 701

462
,330
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Balance, September 30, 1992 .. ... ... 26,764
Cash dividends ($.48 per share) .... -
Exercise of stock options .......
Lapse of restrictions on Restricted

Stock Awards . ...........
Amortization of deferred
compensation ............

Netincome ................

Balance, September 30,1993 ........ 26,764
Cash dividends ($.49 per share) .... -
Exercise of stock options .......
Lapse of restrictions on Restricted

Stock Awards . ...........
Stock issued under Restricted

Stock Award Plan ..........
Amortization of deferred

compensation ............
Netincome ...............

Balance, September 30,1994 .. ...... 26,764

Adjustment to beginning balance for

change in accounting method, net

of income taxes of $21,106 .....
Change in net unrealized holding

gains, net of income taxes

of $2,187 ............ ..
Cash dividends ($.50 per share) .... -
Exercise of stock options .......
Lapse of restrictions on Restricted

Stock Awards . ...........
Forfeiture of restricted stock award .. ---

Amortization of deferred

compensation ............

Netincome ...............

Net
on Stock Additional Unrealized

---------- Paid-In  Holding Retained -

Amount Capital Gains  Earnings
(in thousands)

$2,677 $46,764 $ --- $467,954

(11,815)

888

- (240)

1,716

24,550

2,677 47,412 482,405 2

(12,097)

549

--  (246)

- 481 (814)

1,815

24,971

2,677 48,196 496,280 2

--- 34,435

-~ 3,569

(12,372)

859

- (229)

- (390) 560

1,473

9,751

$2,677 $48,436 $38,004 $495,692

S

2

2

Treasury Stock

26—1) 542

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years En

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Netincome .................
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities-
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .
Dry holes and abandonments ........
Cumulative effect of change in accounting p
Equity in (income) loss of affiliate before
Amortization of deferred compensation
Gain on sale of securities ........
Gain on sale of fixed assets, other
Change in assets and liabilities-
(Increase) decrease in accounts receiva
Increase in inventories .......
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilit
Increase (decrease) in deferred incom
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent

Total adjustments ..........
Net cash provided by operating acti

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures, including dry hole costs .

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipme

Purchase of investments ............
Proceeds from sale of investments . .. ... ..
Purchase of short-term investments .......

Proceeds from sale of short-term investments . .

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt . . ..
Payments made on long-termdebt ........
Proceeds from notes payable ..........
Payments made on notes payable .........
Dividends paid .................

Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . . . .

Net cash provided by (used in) fina
activities ...........

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS .................

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period . .

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period

ded September 30, 1995 1994

(in thousands)

......... $ 9,751 $ 24971 $2

......... 77,115 50,068 4
......... 10,096 10,369
rinciple .. .. (4,000)
income taxes .. (1,752) (1,458)
......... 1,473 1,815
......... (5,697) (124) (
......... (1,115) (2,465)

ble ....... 583 (3,592) (1

......... (318) (3,349)

and other ... (2,792) 5,050
........ 2,675 (1,191)

ies ....... (2,481) 1,617  (

etaxes ..... (1,708) 3,739

liabilities . . 2,742 (1,541) (

......... 78,821 54,938 5

vites ... .. 88,572 79,909 7

......... (110,760) (102,883) (5

nt........ 2,923 5,971
......... (12,858) (1,500) (
......... 11,713 373
......... 12) (
......... 7 124

es ....... (108,975)  (97,927) (3
e (3139) (
......... 37,100
......... (15,400)
......... (12,365)  (11,965) (1
......... 1,282 913
ncing

......... 10,617  (14,191) (1

......... (9,786)  (32,209) 2
......... 29447 61,656 3

......... $ 19,661 $ 29,447 $ 6

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. September 30, 1995, 19941a993

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONSOLIDATION -
The consolidated financial statements include tuw®ants of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the Compangy all of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Fiscal years of the Company's fore@rsolidated operations are August 31 to faaditaporting of consolidated accounts.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES -
The Company has determined that the functionakoay for its foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dolioreign currency transaction gain for
1995 was $1,845,000 with losses for the years 29@41993 of $2,764,000, and $493,000, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

The Company follows the successful efforts methfogicoounting for oil and gas properties. Under thegshod, the Company capitalizes all
costs to acquire mineral interests in oil and gaperties, to drill and equip exploratory wells winifind proved reserves and to drill and ec
development wells. Geological and geophysical ¢calgkay rentals and costs to drill exploratory wedhich do not find proved reserves are
expensed. Capitalized costs of producing oil aredpgaperties are depreciated and depleted by tit@faproduction method based on proved
developed oil and gas reserves determined by thep@oy and reviewed by independent engineers. Utules@ leases are amortized based
on management's estimate of recoverability. Cdst¢simendered leases are charged to the amortizadserve.

Effective July 1, 1995, the Company adopted StatemiFinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No.,12tcounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets bisposed Of", which requires impairment lossesetoecognized for long-lived assets
used in operations when indicators of impairmeatmesent and the undiscounted cash flows areuffitient to recover the assets carrying
amount. The impairment loss is measured by comgaihia fair value of the asset to its carrying antoumder the new statement, the
Company now evaluates impairment of exploration pnodiuction assets on a field by field basis rathan using one worldwide cost center
for its proved properties. Fair values are basedisecounted future cash flows or information preddy sales and purchases of similar
assets.

Substantially all other property, plant and equiptis depreciated using the straight-line methagktdaon the following estimated useful
lives:

YEARS
Contract drilling equipment . . .......... .. ..., 4-10
Chemical plant and equipment . .......... ... ... 10-25
Real estate buildings and equipment . ....... ... .. 10-50
Other................. ... 3-33

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in tErkivestments readily convertible into cash wimiature within three months from the
date of purchase.

INVENTORIES -
Inventories, primarily materials and supplies, afied at the lower of cost (moving average oraltor market.

DRILLING REVENUE -
Substantially all drilling contracts are dayworlntacts and drilling revenues and expenses argnéed as work progresses.

GAS IMBALANCES -
The Company recognizes revenues from gas welle®sales method, and a liability is recorded famament imbalances.

INVESTMENTS -

Prior to October 1, 1994, investments in compaaiesed less than 20 percent were carried at therlofveost or market. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Inments in Debt and Equity Securities", effectivadaber 1, 1994. SFAS No. 115 requi
that the Company's investments in companies owessdthan 20 percent, all of which are consideraeflable-forsale securities, be carried
their fair value. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 11% tBompany recorded an increase to shareholdeiity @§$34 million, which is net of
income taxes of $21 million.

The Company determines fair value of its investrmémcompanies owned less than 20 percent basgqdaiad market prices. The cost



securities used in determining realized gains assds is based on average cost of the security sold

Investments in companies owned from 20 to 50 perenaccounted for using the equity method withGompany recognizing its
proportionate share of the income or loss of eaehstee. The Company owned 24.14 percent and 24c@mt of Atwood Oceanics, Inc.
(Atwood) at September 30, 1995 and 1994, respdytiVee quoted market value of the Company's irmesit was $32,100,000 and
$22,800,000 at September 30, 1995 and 1994, reésplgcRetained earnings at September 30, 199%idechpproximately $10,315,000 of
undistributed earnings of Atwood. At SeptemberB3®5, the Company also had invested $8.3 millioa joint venture with Atwood to build
and operate a new generation offshore platforntirdyitig, which is currently under construction.ef@ompany has a receivable from Atwi
of $2.2 million related to the construction of hdling rig.
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Summarized financial information of Atwood is aidurs:

1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

GrOSSTEVENUES . .\ v ot e $ 77,315 $ 68,045 $ 54,219
Costsand expenses . ............... L. (70,255) (62,045) (56,010)
Netincome (losS) . . ............... ... $ 7,060 $ 6,000 $ (1,791)
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s equity in net income

(loss) of affiliates, net of income taxes.. ... $ 1,086 $ 904 $ (402)
Currentassets ... $ 34,266 $ 37,965 $ 27,903
Noncurrentassets . . ............... ..., 118,587 115,065 122,356
Current liabilities . . . ............. ... 20,505 13,752 11,900
Noncurrent liabilites . ............. ... 37,456 53,000 58,609
Shareholders'equity ............... ... ..., 94,892 86,278 79,750
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s investment ....... ... ... $ 22,495 $ 20,743 $ 19,285

INCOME TAXES -

Effective October 1, 1993, the Company adopted FA&Rement No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxémter Statement No. 109,
deferred income taxes are computed using theityabilethod and are provided on all temporary déferes between the financial basis and
the tax basis of assets and liabilities. For ther ymded September 30, 1993, deferred income taresomputed using the deferred method
and are provided on timing differences betweemiiia and taxable income.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS -

The Company provides medical benefits to employdesretired before November 1, 1992. The Compamsadmt provide any other
benefits to these retirees. The liability for trenbfits provided is not material. Effective Octolhe 995, the Company offered medical
benefits to employees who retired after Novembdi992, with retirees to pay the entire estimatest obsuch benefits.

The Company has accrued a liability for estimatedkers compensation claims incurred. The liabfiityother benefits to former or inactive
employees after employment but before retiremenbtsnaterial.

EARNINGS PER SHARE -
Earnings per share are based on the weighted a&vetagber of shares of common stock outstandingngurie year. Common stock
equivalents are insignificant, and therefore, hastbeen considered in the earnings per share daitigu

NOTE 2 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND CREDIT ARRANGEMENT S
The Company maintains a line of credit agreemetit eértain banks which provides for maximum bormgvof $75,000,000 at adjustable
interest rates. Under the agreement, $75,000,09Cm&orrowed through May 1996, and $45,000,000 bealyorrowed through May 1998.

As of September 30, 1995, the Company had borré4&¢700,000 at a weighted average interest rafe2GPs, leaving an unused portion of
$53,300,000. Under the line of credit agreememt Gbmpany must meet certain requirements regalelrgds of debt, net worth and earnir

The Company has an additional $8.5 million uncorteditine of credit with a bank which can be useddhgrily for letters of credit.
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NOTE 3 INCOME TAXES

Effective October 1, 1993, the Company changechéthod of accounting for income taxes from the getemethod to the liability method
required by FASB Statement No. 109, "Accountinglfamome Taxes." The cumulative effect of adoptitat&nent No. 109 as of October 1,

1993 was to increase net income by $4,000,000 eAmitted under the new rules, prior years finansiatements have not been restated.
The components of the provision for income taxesaarfollows:

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

CURRENT:
Federal ............coovevee $ 1,102 $ 3,645 $ 6,190
FOrQIGN .o ovve e 6,442 2,763 5,106
SEAE «ovve 370 777 911
7,914 7,185 12,207
DEFERRED:
Federal ................... .. (3,155) (292) 3,174
Foreign ................... L. 534 3,430 2,616
State ... (249) (91) 282
(2,870) 3,047 6,072
TOTAL PROVISION: $ 5044  $ 10,232 $ 18,279
The amounts of domestic and foreign income arelisifs:
Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES, EQUITY IN INCOME (LOSS)
OF AFFILIATE, AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE:

Domestic . ..........o. $ (5,816) $ 17,513 $ 29,051
Foreign ................... L. 19,525 12,786 14,180
$ 13,709 $ 30,299 $ 43,231

Effective income tax rates as compared to the BeBeral income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993
U.S. Federal income taxrate ........... ..., 35% 35% 35%
Dividends received deduction ........... ... ... (4) 2) 1)
Excess statutory depletion ............ ... 2) Q) (1)
Effect of higher foreign taxrates ........ ... ... 11 3 7
Non-conventional fuel source credits utilized ... ... ... (5) (1) -
Other,net .................... .. 2 - 2
Effective income taxrate . . ........... ... ... 37% 34% 42%

The components of the Company's net deferred dahxities are as follows:

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994

(in thousands)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:

Property, plant and equipmen t $40,702 $ 42,406
Available-for-sale securitie s 23,293 -
Pension provision 4,774 4,632
Equity Investment 3,920 3,254
Other 846 744

Total deferred tax lia bilities 73,535 51,036



DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
Financial accruals
Other
Total deferred tax ass
Valuation allowance

Net deferred tax asset

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

ets
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The deferred income tax provision (benefit) for 398sults from timing differences in the recognitiaf revenue and expense for income tax
and financial reporting purposes. The sourceseddtdifferences and the related income tax effegach, are as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 1 993
(in th ousands)

Effect of intangible development costs expensed for income tax purposes
over (under) costs amortized for financial report ing purposes . .......... $1 ,302
Financial under income tax depreciation..... L. ... 2 134
Pensionincome ............. ... . e 128
Geophysicalexpense . ............... e (51)
INSUrance exXpense . ................ e (36)
Amortization of deferred compensation....... L ... (652)
Restricted stock options vesting ......... L. 609
Deferred mobilization revenues .......... L 566
Sales of long-term investments .......... L. 484
Excessdepletion ................. e 589
Oil and gas revenue recognition timing differences ... o o 262
Other. ... ... ... oo 737
$6 ,072

NOTE 4 STOCK OPTIONS, AWARD PLAN AND RIGHTS

The Company has reserved 1,361,681 shares oé@sury stock to satisfy the exercise of stock ogtissued under the 1982 and 1990 Stock
Option Plans. Options awarded under these plangrarged at prices equal to at least market pricthe date of grant. Options granted under
the 1982 plan have a term of nine years while ogtigranted under the 1990 plan have a term of sgza@ns. Options granted under both
plans become exercisable in increments as outimétk plans. Activity for the incentive stock aptiplans, was as follows:

Years Ended Septemb er 30, 1995 1994 1 993
Outstanding at October 1, . .. .......... .... 835879 780,079 860 713
Granted . ..................... .... 107,750 110,250 --
EXErcised . .....ovvenee.. ... (78,094) (46,510) (67 ,112)
Cancelled . .................... Lo (24,264) (7,940) (13 ,522)
Outstanding at September 30, ........... ..., 841271 835,879 780 ,079
Exercisable at September 30, ........... .... 110,399 70,889 19 ,782
Weighted average exercise price of options outstand ing... $26.39 $ 25.65 $2 5.20
Weighted average exercise price of options exercise d... $19.68 $21.77 $2 1.53

As of September 30, 1995, the Company has issu@®@ shares of treasury stock under a Restridwek3\ward Plan (the "Plan"). The
Company recognized deferred compensation totafiiliy832,000, which was the fair market value ofdteek at the time of issuance, as a
reduction of retained earnings. The deferred corsgtion is being amortized over a seven-year pesocbmpensation expense. The
unamortized balance at September 30, 1995 and#8943,189,000 and $5,223,000, respectively. 11519994, and 1993, restrictions
lapsed with respect to 61,000 shares, and theshane released to Plan participants. In 1995 thasea forfeiture of 15,000 shares.

On September 30, 1995, the Company had 24,764 8@@aoding common stock purchase rights ("Righ&sdch Right entitles the holder
thereof, until January 8, 1996, to buy one shamoafmon stock at an exercise price of $60.00. Keecise price and the number of shares of
common stock issuable upon the exercise of thetRigie subject to adjustment in certain caseseeent dilution. The Rights are evidenced
by the common stock certificates and are not esabté or transferable apart from the common stackl 15 days after a person acquires 15
percent or more of the common stock. In the evenGompany is acquired in a merger or other busicembination transaction (including
one in which the Company is the surviving corpana)j it is provided that each Right will entitls tolder to purchase, at the then current
exercise price of the Right, that number of shafeeommon stock of the surviving company, whiclhet time of such transaction, would
have a market value of two times the exercise mfidbe Right. The Rights do not have any votimghts and are redeemable, at the option of
the Company, at a price of $.05 per Right pricang person or entity acquiring beneficial ownerdffiat least 15 percent of the common
stock. The Rights expire on January 8, 1996. Ag Emthe Rights are not separately transferatdeCtimpany will issue one Right with each
new share of common stock issued.

NOTE 5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS



Short-term investments consist mainly of U.S. tuepsiotes carried at cost, which approximatesvaiue, and are pledged as collateral for a
renewable letter of credit. Notes payable bearésteat market rates and is carried at cost wipghoximates fair value.

The following is a summary of available-for-salewsties, which excludes those accounted for uttgeequity method of accounting (see

Note 1):

Equity Securities, September 30, 1995 $6

Gross Gross E stimated
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)

4,804 $61,455 $158 $126,101
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During the years ended September 30, 1995, 19941993, marketable equity available-for-sale s¢iegrivith a fair value at the date of sale
of $11,713,000, $373,000 and $7,904,000, respégtimere sold. The gross realized gains on suatsgaf available-fosale securities totalr
$5,734,000, $124,000, and $3,579,000, respectiaely the gross realized losses totaled $37,00@r&D$665,000, respectively.

NOTE 6 IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Adoption of SFAS No. 121, effective July 1, 1998sulted in a before-tax charge of $22 million whigincluded in depreciation, depletion
and amortization expense. The charge reduced ¥895tax net income by $13.6 million, or $.55 phage. The before-tax charges included
$20 million for proved Exploration and Productiomperties and $2 million for Real Estate propertig®e fair values of the proved proper
were determined using the present value of expdatade net cash flows. The fair values of the imgxdireal estate properties were
determined based on the estimated sales pricengf@@ble assets.

NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS:

The Company has noncontributory pension plans cayaubstantially all of its employees, includirgrtain employees in foreign countries.
The Company makes annual contributions to the pgunsl to the maximum amount allowable for tax répg purposes. Future service
benefits are determined using a 1.5 percent careaage formula.

The net periodic pension credit included the folloywcomponents:

Years Ended Sep tember 30, 1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)
Service cost-benefits earned during theyear ... ... $ 1,589 $ 1,557 $1,304
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations .. ... 1,301 1,191 1,105
Returnonplanassets ............... ... (2,798) (2,639) (522)
Net amortization and deferral . . ......... ... (301) (302) (2,477)
Net pension credit . ........... ... $ (209) $(193) $ (590)

The discount rate used in determining the actuadhle of the projected benefit obligation for 199994 and 1993 was 7.25%, 7.5% and
7.0%, respectively. The average expected ratetofir@n plan assets was 8.5% for 1995, 1994 an8.1d% assumed rate of increase in
compensation was 5.0% for 1995 and 1994, and 506%9093.

The following table sets forth the plans' fundeatist and amounts recognized in the balance sheet:

Yea rs Ended September 30, 1995 1994

(in thousands)
Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

Vested benefit obligation. . .......... ... .. $ 16,199 $ 13,323

Accumulated benefit obligation ......... ... .. $ 19,215 $ 15,758

Projected benefit obligation .......... ... $21,735 $ 17,755
Plan assets at fair value, primarily listed stocks, U.S. Government

securities and guaranteed insurance contracts .. ... ... $ 38,114 $ 33,317
Projected benefit obligation less than plan assets ... ... $ 16,379 $ 15,562
Unrecognized net gain, including unrecognized

net assets existing at October 1,1987 ..... ... ..., (5,959) (5,589)
Unrecognized prior servicecost . . ........ ..., 1,978 2,216
Prepaid pensioncost ............... ..., $ 12,398 $ 12,189

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN:



Substantially all employees on the United Statgsgleof the Company may elect to participate ie thompany sponsored Thrift/401(k) Plan
by contributing a portion of their earnings. Then@any contributes amounts equal to 100 perceriteofitst five percent of the participant's

compensation subject to certain limitations. ExpenSompany contributions were $1,735,000, $1,58800 $1,304,000 in 1995, 1994 and
1993, respectively.
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NOTE 8 ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Years En ded September 30, 1995 1994

(in thousands)

Accrued royalties payable . .. .......... ..., $ 5,977 $ 6,293
Accrued taxespayable . . ............. ..., 3,109 4,669
Accrued workers compensation clams . .......  _....... 2,430 2,364
Accrued equipmentcost . ............. ... 4,017 3,000
Other accrued liabilites . . ........... ..., 5,996 7,730

$ 21,529 $ 24,056

NOTE 9 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

Cash payments:
Interestpaid . ............... $ 408 $ 371 $ 370
Income taxespaid.............. 4,624 9,516 1 5,924

Noncash investing activity:
Accrued equipmentcost ........... $1,016 $3,000 $

NOTE 10 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consishprily of temporary cash investments
and trade receivables. The Company places its teanpoash investments with high credit financiaititutions and limits the amount of cre
exposure to any one financial institution. The Camys trade receivables are primarily with a varegtcompanies in the oil and gas indus
Management requires collateral for certain recdesbf customers in its natural gas marketing djpera.

NOTE 11 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates principally in the contraitfiry and oil and gas industries. The contracllidg operations consist of contracting
Company-owned drilling equipment primarily to magikrand gas exploration companies. Oil and gaisities consist of ownership of
mineral interests in productive oil and gas leasebundeveloped leases located primarily in Okladohexas, Kansas and Louisiana.
Intersegment sales, which are accounted for iséinee manner as sales to unaffiliated customersicamaaterial. Operating profit is total
revenue less operating expenses. In computing tipgrarofit, the following items have not been calesed: equity in earnings of Atwood
Oceanics, Inc.; income from investments; genergl@ate expenses; interest expense; and domestioerign income taxes. ldentifiable
assets by segment are those assets that are ubeddompany's operations in each segment. Cospassets are principally cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and investmantsarketable securities.

Revenues from one company doing business withdhtact drilling segment accounted for approximatéd percent, 14 percent, and 11.8
percent of the total consolidated revenues dufiegyears ended September 30, 1995, 1994 and kg atively. Collectively, revenues
from three companies controlled by the Venezuetareghment accounted for approximately 13.4 peroétdtal consolidated revenues for
the year ended September 30, 1995.

Summarized revenues and operating profit by ingiusstgment for the years ended September 30, 1998,dnd 1993 are located on page
Additional financial information by industry segmeés as follows:
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Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1 993
(in thousands)
Identifiable assets:
Contract drilling - Domestic . ...... $138,359 $132,804 $11 2,435
Contract drilling - International . . . . . 188,587 131,767 11 3,844
Exploration and Production ........ 142,184 175,003 16 2,618
Natural Gas Marketing ... ........ 10,192 8,846 1 3,289
Chemical division . .. .......... 9,822 9,532 9,753
Real Estate division ........... 24,380 26,958 2 7,845
Corporate and other . . .......... 196,641 139,917 17 1,151
$710,165 $624,827 $61 0,935
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Contract drilling - Domestic . ...... $ 12,213 $ 11,085 $1 0,126
Contract drilling - International . . . . . 19,557 15,722 1 6,929
Exploration and Production ........ 39,895 19,523 1 8,294
Natural Gas Marketing ... ........ 298 290 279
Chemical division .. ........... 672 654 594
Real Estate division ........... 3,623 1,624 1,679
Corporate and other . ........... 959 1,265 864
Intersegment elimination . ........ (102) (95) (156)
$77,115 $ 50,068 $4 8,609
Capital expenditures:
Contract drilling - Domestic . ...... $ 32,503 $ 31,692 $1 6,261
Contract drilling - International . . . . . 55,044 25,723 1 0,375
Exploration and Production ........ 20,956 45,809 2 5,551
Natural Gas Marketing ... ........ 252 76 205
Chemical division . . ........... 859 619 630
Real Estate division ........... 907 916 458
Corporate and other . . .......... 1,255 1,048 729
$111,776 $105,883 $5 4,209
NOTE 12 SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR OIL  AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES
All of the Company's oil and gas producing actestare located in the United States.
Results of Operations from Oil and Gas Producing Alfivities -
Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)
Revenues .................. $ 47,986 $58,884 $6 9,795
Productioncosts . ............. 18,035 18,854 1 9,378
Exploration expense and valuation provisions 14,017 17,262 1 2,628
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . 39,895 19,523 1 8,294
Income tax expense ............. (7,243) 890 6,481
Total cost and expenses . .. ....... 64,704 56,529 5 6,781
Results of operations (excluding corporate
overhead and interest costs) ....... $(16,718) $ 2,355 $1 3,014
Capitalized Costs -
At September 30, 1995 19 94

(in thousands)

Properties being amortized:
Proved properties . .. ............. ... $384,755 $37 7,371
Unproved properties . . ............. ..., 8,051 1 1,729



Total costs being amortized . .. .......

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortizat

Net Capitalized Costs

...... 392,806 38
ion .... 257,988 22
...... $134,818 $16
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Costs Incurred Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Agvities -

Years Ended September 30, 1995 1994 19 93

(in thousands)
Property acquisition:

Proved .................. . $ 1,228 $23,115 $ 3 ,100
Unproved ................. . 1,565 4,893 2 ,409
Exploration ................. . 13,497 12,418 11 ,769
Development ................. . 9,703 12,888 13 ,964
Total ................... . $25,993 $53,314 $31 242

Estimated Quantities of Proved Oil and Gas Reservgt/naudited) -

Proved reserves are estimated quantities of crildeatural gas, and natural gas liquids which ggmlal and engineering data demonstrate
with reasonable certainty to be recoverable inruttears from known reservoirs under existing eatin@nd operating conditions. Proved
developed reserves are those which are expectezirecovered through existing wells with existioglipment and operating methods. The
following is an analysis of proved oil and gas reee as estimated by the Company and revieweddgpendent engineers.

OIL (Bhls.) GAS (M mcf)
Proved reserves at September 30,1992 ....... ... 7,507,586 294 ,596
Revisions of previous estimates . . . ....... ... .. (15,550) 9 ,568
Extensions, discoveries and other additions .... ... .. ... 168,051 10 ,083
Production .................... . (875,713) (28 A479)
Purchases of reserves-in-place .......... ... . ... 140,411 4 ,196
Sales of reserves-in-place ............ ..., (41,586) (519)
Proved reserves at September 30,1993 ....... ... 6,883,199 289 445
Revisions of previous estimates . . . ....... ... .. 302,200 (819)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions .... .. ... ... 261,114 8 ,818
Production ................ ... . (887,455) (26 ,628)
Purchases of reserves-in-place .......... ... . ... 159,580 19 ,900
Sales of reserves-in-place ............ ..., (8,427) (64)
Proved reserves at September 30,1994 ....... ... 6,710,211 290 ,652
Revisions of previous estimates . . . ....... ..., 124,361 5 222
Extensions, discoveries and other additions .... ... .. ... 328,539 8 775
Production .................... . (808,058) (26 421)
Purchases of reserves-in-place .......... ... . ..., 310 1 ,934
Sales of reserves-in-place ............ ..., (26,251) (116)
Proved reserves at September 30,1995....... ... 6,329,112 280 ,046
Proved developed reserves at
September 30,1993 . ............. ... 6,882,783 282 ,033
September 30,1994 .. ............ L. 6,649,672 267 ,688
September 30,1995 . ............. ... 6,270,216 262 ,319

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Eshs Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves (Uited) - The "Standardized
Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows RejatrProved Oil and Gas Reserves" (Standardizedsiegis a disclosure requirement
under Financial Accounting Standards Board Statémen69. The Standardized Measure does not putp@resent the fair market value of
a company's proved oil and gas reserves. This wegjdire consideration of expected future econanit operating conditions, which are
taken into account in calculating the Standardidegsure.

Under the Standardized Measure, future cash influere estimated by applying year-end prices tettnated future production of yeame
proved reserves. Future cash inflows were redugezstimated future production and development des¢ed on year-end costs to determine
pre-tax cash inflows. Future income taxes were eagatpby applying the statutory tax rate to the esa# pre-tax cash inflows over the
Company's tax basis in the associated proved dibas properties. Tax credits and permanent difterg were also considered in the future
income tax calculation. Future net cash inflowgrificome taxes were discounted using a ten peacental discount rate to arrive at the
Standardized Measure.
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At September 30, 1995 19 94

(in thousands)

Future cashinflows . . .............. ..., $429,259 $478 426
Future costs -
Future production and developmentcosts ... ... ..., (173,633) (191 ,464)
Future income taxexpense .......... ... (63,183) (71 ,320)
Futurenetcashflows............... ... ..., 192,443 215 ,642
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash fl OWS ......... (81,509) (91 ,019)
Standardized Measure of discounted future net cash flows ........ $110,934 $124 ,623

Changes in Standardized Measure Relating to Prove@il and Gas Reserves

(Unaudited)
Years Ended Sep tember 30, 1995 1994 1993
(in thousands)
Standardized Measure - Beginning ofyear ..... ..., $124,623 $178,757 $173 ,644
Increases (decreases) -

Sales, net of productioncosts ...... ... (29,951) (40,030) (50 ,417)
Net change in sales prices, net of productio n costs . (12,917) (80,347) 16 ,292

Discoveries and extensions, net of related f uture
development and productioncosts .... ..., 8,179 9,653 12 439
Changes in estimated future development cost S ... (4,672) (14,571) 7 ,624)
Development costs incurred ........ ... 9,703 12,888 13 ,964
Revisions of previous quantity estimates . ..., 2,825 483 6 ,820
Accretion of discount . .......... ... 16,171 23,678 22 ,619
Net change inincome taxes ........ ... (7,538) 20,942 (12 ,656)
Purchases of reserves-in-place ...... ... 1,202 11,219 3 ,820
Sales of reserves-in-place ........ ... (51) (62) (652)
Other .................. L 3,360 2,013 508
Standardized Measure - End ofyear ...... ..., $110,934 $124,623 $178 757

NOTE 13 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

Quarter Ended

Dec. 31, March 31, June 30, Sept. 30,
1994 1995 1995 19 95

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues .................. $79,944 $79,301  $78,756 $87 775
Gross profit (loss) ............ 8,909 11,550 9,389 6 ,931)
Net income (loss)(1) ............ 4,416 5,820 4,584 5 ,069)
Earnings (loss) per share ......... .18 .24 .19 (.21)

Quarter Ended

Dec. 31, March 31, June 30, Sept. 30,
1993 1994 1994 19 94

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues .................. $82,186 $87,883  $78,698 $80 ,234
Gross profit . ............... 14,149 12,701 8,688 4 ,054
Income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle ......... 7,253 6,155 4,660 2 ,903
Netincome (2) ............... 11,253 6,155 4,660 2 ,903
Earnings per common share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle .30 .25 .19 12
Earnings pershare ............. .46 .25 .19 12

Gross profit (loss) represents total revenuesdpssating costs, depreciation, depletion and amatitin, dry holes and abandonments, and
taxes, other than income tax



(1) The quarter ended September 30, 1995 includedtar-tax charge of $13.6 million ($.55 per shaetated to the Company adopting

SFAS No. 121 (see note 6).
(2) The quarter ended September 30, 1994 includexdtartax charge of $2.7 million ($.11 per share) for &mment of leases ($1.35 millio

and dryhole costs ($1.35 million) in the Austin Chalk guest in Louisiana.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. as of Septe@®el995 and 1994, and the

related consolidated statements of income, shatet®lequity, and cash flows for the years thereén@hese financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyarsibility is to express an opinion on these fahstatements based on our audits. The
consolidated statements of income, shareholdeugtyeand cash flows for the year ended Septembel 393, were audited by other auditors
whose report dated November 16, 1993, expressadgumlified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaltepted auditing standards. Those standardgeedhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethenthedial statements are free of material misstatemd@naudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digelesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememiell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 1995 and 1994 financial statetmeeferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, the consolidated financial
position of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. at SeptemberI@®5 and 1994, and the consolidated results afderations and its cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with generally @ted accounting principle

As discussed in Note 6 to the financial statemeaffective July 1, 1995, the Company adopted Statgrof Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment ajrig-Lived Assets and for Lorigved Assets to be Disposed Of". As discussed iteNu
to the financial statements, effective October@94l, the Company adopted SFAS No., 115, "Accourfon@ertain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities." As discussed in Note 3 to tharicial statements, effective October 1, 1993Gbmpany adopted SFAS No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes."

Tul sa, Gkl ahoma /'s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Novenber 17, 1995

STOCK PRICE INFORMATION

Closing Market Price Per Share

1995 1994

QUARTERS HIGH LOW HIGH LO w

First ... $311/4 $255/8 $341/2 $26 1/2

Second ... 27 1/2 24 1/2 30 26

Third ... .. 31 26 5/8 27 1/8 25 1/8

Fourth ................. 30 27 5/8 28 1/8 25 5/8
DIVIDEND INFORMATION

Paid Per Share Total Payment
1995 1994 1995 199 4

QUARTERS

First ... $.125 $.120 $3,089,758  $2,956 ,498

Second ...l 125 .120 3,087,958 2,960 ,098

Third ... 125 120 3,092,973 2,960 314

Fourth ................. 125 125 3,094,813 3,087 ,902

STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

The annual meeting of stockholders will be heldvarch 6, 1996. A formal notice of the meeting, tihge with a proxy statement and form
of proxy, will be mailed to shareholders on or ahdanuary 25, 199



STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Common Stock is tradedrenNew York Stock Exchange with the ticker symbéP'" The newspaper abbreviati
most commonly used for financial reporting is "HBIrhOptions on the Company's stock are also tradeitie New York Stock Exchange.

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
As of December 15, 1995, there were 1,656 recolden® of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. common stock stetl by the transfer agent's records.

Our Transfer Agent is responsible for our sharetotdcords, issuance of stock certificates, aniligion of our dividends and the IRS
Form 1099. Your requests, as shareholders, comzpthése matters are most efficiently answeredoogesponding directly with The Liberty
Bank of Oklahoma City at the following address:

The Liberty National Bank and Trust Company of @klma City Stock Transfer Department P.O. Box 25848
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125-0848
Telephone: (405) 231-6325

FORM 10-K

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, which lieen submitted to the Securities and Exchange Gssion, is available free of
charge upon written request.

DIRECT INQUIRIES TO:
President

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Utica at Twenty- First
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74114
Telephone: (918) 742-5531
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ELEVEN-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
Years Ended Septem ber 30, 1995 1994 1993
REVENUES AND INCOME*
Contract Drilling Revenues .......... 203,325 182,781 149,661
Crude OilSales ................ 13,227 13,161 15,392
Natural Gas Sales ............... 33,851 45,261 52,446
Gas Marketing Revenues** . .......... 34,729 51,874 63,786
Chemical Sales ................ 18,986 18,746 14,286
Real Estate Revenues ............. 7,560 7,396 7,620
Dividend Income ................ 3,389 3,621 3,535
Other Revenues ................ 10,709 6,161 8,371
Total Revenues ................ 325,776 329,001 315,097
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities++ . . 88,572 79,909 74,619
Net Income+ . ................. 9,751 24,971 24,550
PER SHARE DATA
NetIncome+ .................. .40 1.02 1.01
Cash Dividends ................ .50 .485 .48
Shares Outstanding* .............. 24,765 24,710 24,637
FINANCIAL POSITION
Net Working Capital* ............. 45,383 76,238 104,085
Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities 1.65 2.63 3.24
Investments* ................. 156,908 87,414 84,945
Total Assets* ................. 710,165 624,827 610,935
Long-TermDebt* ................ -- - 3,600
Shareholders' Equity* ............. 562,435 524,334 508,927
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES*
Contract Drilling Equipment .. ........ 80,943 53,752 24,101
Wells and Equipment . ............. 19,384 40,916 23,142
Chemical Plant and Equipment . ........ 793 572 540
Real Estate .................. 873 902 436
Other Assets (includes undeveloped leases) 9,783 9,741 5,990
Total Capital Outlays ............. 111,776 105,883 54,209
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AT COST*
Contract Drilling Equipment . ......... 501,682 444,432 418,004
Producing Properties ............. 384,755 377,371 340,176
Undeveloped Leases .............. 8,051 11,729 10,010
Chemical Plant and Equipment ......... 13,210 12,417 11,845
Real Estate .................. 46,642 47,827 47,502
Other .................... 56,382 49,326 45,785
Total Property, Plant and Equipment . . .. .. 1,010,722 943,102 873,322

* 000's omitted ** Gas Marketing activities beganli990

++ Funds generated by operations for 1985

+ Includes $13.6 million (.55 per share) effectmpairment charge for adoption of SFAS No. 121983 and cumulative effect of change in
accounting for income taxes of $4,000,000 ($.16spare) in 1994
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Years Ended September
REVENUES AND INCOME*

Contract Drilling Revenues ..........
Crude OilSales ................
NaturalGas Sales ...............
Gas Marketing Revenues** . ..........
ChemicalSales ................
Real Estate Revenues .............
Dividend Income ................
Other Revenues ................
Total Revenues ................
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities++ . .
NetIncome+ ..................

PER SHARE DATA
NetIncome+ ..................
Cash Dividends ................
Shares Qutstanding* ..............

FINANCIAL POSITION
Net Working Capital* .............
Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities
Investments* .................
Total Assets* . ................
Long-Term Debt* ................
Shareholders' Equity* .............

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES*
Contract Drilling Equipment . .........
Wells and Equipment .. ............
Chemical Plant and Equipment .........
Real Estate ..................
Other Assets (includes undeveloped leases)
Total Capital Outlays .............

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AT COST*
Contract Drilling Equipment .. ........
Producing Properties .............
Undeveloped Leases ..............
Chemical Plant and Equipment . ........

Real Estate ..................
Other ....................
Total Property, Plant and Equipment . . .. ..

Years Ended September 3

REVENUES AND INCOME*
Contract Drilling Revenues ..........
Crude Oil Sales ................
NaturalGas Sales ...............
Gas Marketing Revenues** . ..........
Chemical Sales ................
Real Estate Revenues .............
Dividend Income ................
Other Revenues ................
Total Revenues ................

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities++ . .

NetIncome+ . .................

PER SHARE DATA
NetIncome+ . .................
Cash Dividends ................
Shares Outstanding* ..............

FINANCIAL POSITION
Net Working Capital* .............
Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities
Investments* . ................
Total Assets* .................
Long-Term Debt* ................
Shareholders' Equity* .............

30, 1992 1991 1990 1

112,833 105,364 90,974 78
16,369 17,374 16,058 14
38,370 35,628 37,697 33
40,410 10,055 10,566
13,411 12,674 12,067 10

7,541 7,542 7,636 7
4,050 5,285 7,402 9
6,716 20,024 56,144 17

239,700 213,946 238,544 171
63,331 52,110 55,422 67
10,849 21,241 47,562 22

.45 .88
465 .46

1.97
44

24,576 24,488 24,485 24

82,800 108,212 146,741 114

3.31 4.19

3.72

87,780 96,471 99,574 130

585,504 575,168 582,927 591
8,339 5,693 5,648 49

493,286 491,133 479,485 443

43,049 56,297 18,303 17
21,617 34,741 16,489 30
104 2,478 1,089
690 2,104 1,467
17,038 6,909 5,512 6
82,498 102,529 42,860 56

404,155 370,494 324,293 323
329,264 312,438 287,248 279
12,973 5,652 5,507 5
11,305 11,202 8,723 7
47,286 46,671 44,928 48
43,810 37,059 32,682 30
848,793 783,416 703,381 694

0, 1988 1987 1986 1985
75,985 64,718 68,220 90,647
14,001 15,223 20,020 32,447
26,154 17,251 21,308 28,335
11,265 9,603 8,471 8,778
7,878 7,561 6,839 5,658
10,069 9,757 11,033 10,878
15,213 34,766 29,244 18,054

160,565 158,879 165,135 194,797
57,967 38,337 54,756 72,552
20,150 22,016 7,025 18,498

.83 91 .28 74
.40 .38 .36 .35
24,166 24,187 24,187 25,146
135,275 135,139 108,331 118,340
6.10 6.68 5.61 4.58

133,726 140,431 158,311 163,045

576,473 571,348 563,236 616,034
70,715 74,732 79,340 85,532

430,804 420,833 408,185 427,860




CAPITAL EXPENDITURES*
Contract Drilling Equipment

Wells and Equipment . . ...

Chemical Plant and Equipment .........

Real Estate ............

Other Assets (includes undeveloped leases)

Total Capital Outlays . .. ..

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AT COST*

Contract Drilling Equipment
Producing Properties . ...
Undeveloped Leases . ...

Chemical Plant and Equipment .........

Real Estate ............

Other ................

Total Property, Plant and Equipment . ... ..
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19,110
25,936
688
3,095
2,623
51,452

13,993 23,673 27,777
27,402 11,767 9,527
307 232 175
6,128 1,409 9,782
2,041 2,075 5,397
49,871 39,156 52,658

313,289
251,445
3,305
6,889
47,165
28,279
650,372

309,865 307,199 287,641
228,214 215,488 218,102
4,197 7,294 10,403
6,201 5,894 5,662
44,070 38,131 36,538
28,675 28,846 28,345
621,222 602,852 586,691




ELEVEN-YEAR OPERATING REVIEW
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Years Ended September 30,

CONTRACT DRILLING
Drilling Rigs, United States . .. .......
Drilling Rigs, International . .. .......
Contract Wells Drilled, United States . ....
Total Footage Drilled, United States* . . . ..
Average Depth per Well, United States . .. ..
Percentage Rig Utilization, United States . . .
Percentage Rig Utilization, International . . .

PETROLEUM EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT

Gross Wells Completed .............
Net Wells Completed ..............
NetDryHoles .................

PETROLEUM PRODUCTION
Net Crude Oil and Natural Gas Liquids
Produced (barrels daily) . . ..........
Net Oil Wells Owned - Primary Recovery . . . . .
Net Oil Wells Owned - Secondary Recovery . . . .
Secondary Oil Recovery Projects ........
Net Natural Gas Produced
(thousands of cubic feet daily) .......
Net Gas WellsOwned ..............

NATURAL GAS ODORANTS AND
OTHER CHEMICALS
Chemicals Sold (pounds)* .. ..........

REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT
Gross Leasable Area (square feet)* .. ... ..
Percentage Occupancy . .............

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Subsidiariesa . .

Years Ended September 30,

CONTRACT DRILLING
Drilling Rigs, United States . .. .......
Drilling Rigs, International . . ........

Contract Wells Drilled, United States .. ...
Total Footage Drilled, United States* . . ...

Average Depth per Well, United States

Percentage Rig Utilization, United States . . .
Percentage Rig Utilization, International . . .

PETROLEUM EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT
Gross Wells Completed .............

Net Wells Completed ..............
NetDryHoles .................

PETROLEUM PRODUCTION
Net Crude Oil and Natural Gas Liquids
Produced (barrels daily) . . ..........

Net Oil Wells Owned - Primary Recovery
Net Oil Wells Owned - Secondary Recovery . . ..
Secondary Oil Recovery Projects ........

Net Natural Gas Produced

(thousands of cubic feet daily) .......
Net Gas WellsOwned ..............

NATURAL GAS ODORANTS AND
OTHER CHEMICALS

Chemicals Sold (pounds)* . ...........

REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT

Gross Leasable Area (square feet)* . ... ...
Percentage Occupancy .. ............

1995 1994 1993 1992

41 47 42 39

35 29 29 30

212 162 128 100

1,933 1,842 1,504 1,085

9,119 11,367 11,746 10,853

71 69 53 42

84 88 68 69

59 a4 42 54

27.4 15 15.9 17.8

5.9 1.7 43 4.3

2214 2431 2,399 2,334

186 202 202 220

64 71 71 74

12 14 14 14

72,387 72,953 78,023 75,470

354 341 307 289

7,670 8071 7,930 8,452

1,652 1,652 1,656 1,656

87 83 86 87

3,245 2,787 2,389 1,928
1989 1988 1987 1986
49 48 50 48
20 18 19 19
108 115 110 110
1,350 1,284 1,182 1,384 1
12,500 11,165 10,745 12,582 13
44 45 39 44
46 30 16 30
45 45 18 27
152 146 5.2 10.3
2.8 1.6 5 3.6
2,486 2,463 2,578 3,077 3
201 202 199 234
214 222 237 235
17 21 20 18
57,490 45480 31,752 32,392 35
205 197 180 180
7,702 8507 8,165 7,554 9
1,669 1,670 1595 1433 1
90 90 94 95

1991 1990
46 49
25 20
106 119
1,301 1,316
12,274 11,059
47 50
69 46
45 36
20.3 15.3
4.3 3.4
2,152 2,265
227 223
55 46
12 12
66,617 65,147
278 194
8,155 8,255
1,664 1,664
86 85
1,758 1,864



TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and Subsidiariesa . . 1,100 1,156 1,026 844 1 ,126

* 000's omitted.
+ 1985-1989 include U.S. employees only
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Directors

Officers

W. H. HELMERICH, IlI
Chairman of the Board,
Tulsa, Oklahoma

HANS HELMERICH
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Tulsa, Oklahoma

WILLIAM L. ARMSTRONG
Chairman, Ambassador Media Corporation,
Denver, Colorado

GLENN A. COX*

President and Chief Operating Officer, Retired,
Phillips Petroleum Co.,

Bartlesville, Oklahoma

GEORGE S. DOTSON

Vice President,

President of Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co.,

Tulsa, Oklahoma

C. W. FLINT, JR.*
Chairman,

Flint Industries, Inc.,
Tulsa, Oklahoma

GEORGE A. SCHAEFER

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Retired,
Caterpillar Inc.,

Peoria, lllinois

HARRY W. TODD

Chairman, CEO, and President, Retired,
Rohr Industries, Inc.,

Chula Vista, California

JOHN D. ZEGLIS

Senior Vice President and General Counsel,
American Telephone & Telegraph Co.,
Basking Ridge, New Jersey

*Member, Audit Committee

W. H. HELMERICH, Il
Chairman of the Board

HANS HELMERICH
President and Chief Executive Officer

ALLEN S. BRAUMILLER
Vice President,
Exploration

GEORGE S. DOTSON

Vice President,

President of Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co.

DOUGLAS E. FEARS
Vice President,
Finance

STEVEN R. MACKEY
Vice President, Secretary,
and General Counsel

JAMES L. PAYNE
Vice President,
Real Estate

STEVEN R. SHAW

Vice President,
Production
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Exhibit 22
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Helmerich & Payne Properties, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma) Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc. fina@ted in Oklahoma) The
Hardware Store of Utica Square, Inc. (Incorporéte@klahoma) The Space Center, Inc. (Incorporate@dklahoma) H&P DISC, Inc.
(Incorporated in Oklahoma) Helmerich & Payne Coal @Incorporated in Oklahoma) Natural Gas Odorizing. (Incorporated in Oklahomr
Helmerich & Payne Energy Services, Inc. (Incorpedah Oklahoma) Helmerich & Payne Internationalliwg Co. (Incorporated in
Delaware)

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne International Driling Co.

Helmerich & Payne (Africa) Drilling Co. (Incorpoed in Cayman Islands, British West Indies) HelmedcPayne (Colombia) Drilling Co.
(Incorporated in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Gabon) Drilling Co. (Incorpordie Cayman Islands, British West Indies) HelmegcRayne (Guatemala) Drilling Co.
(Incorporated in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Peru) Drilling Co. (IncorporatedOklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne (Australia) Drilling Co. (Incomaded in Oklahoma)

Helmerich & Payne del Ecuador, Inc. (Incorporate@®klahoma)

Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A. (Incorporatedenezuela)

Helmerich & Payne, C.A. (Incorporated in Venezuélg)merich & Payne Rasco, Inc. (Incorporated inabkima) H&P Finco (Incorporated
in Cayman Islands, British West Indies)

H&P Invest Ltd. (Incorporated in Cayman IslandsijitiBh West Indies, doing business as H&P (Yemeriljibg Co.

Subsidiary of H&P Invest Ltd.

Turrum Pty. Ltd. (Incorporated in Papua, New Gujr



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby cangehe incorporation of our report dated Novemb&r1993, included in this Form 10-
K, into the Company's previously filed Registrat®tatement File Nos. 33-16771 and 33- 55239 on E@r8.

ARTHUR ANDERSON LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma

December 22, 199



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference is #nnual Report (Form 10-K) of Helmerich & Payneg.lof our report dated November 17,
1995, included in the 1995 Annual Report to Shaddrs of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We also consent to the incorporation by referendbe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 3316&ind 33-55239) pertaining,
respectively, to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. IndenStock Option Plan and 1990 Stock Option Plaowfreport dated November 17, 1995,
with respect to the consolidated financial stateienHelmerich & Payne, Inc. incorporated by refeze in the Annual Report (Form 10-K)
for the year ended September 30, 1995.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Tulsa, Oklahoma

December 22, 199



ARTICLE 5
MULTIPLIER: 1,00C

PERIOD TYPE YEAR
FISCAL YEAR END SEP 30 199
PERIOD START OCT 01 199
PERIOD END SEP 30 199
CASH 19,66!
SECURITIES 156,90¢
RECEIVABLES 59,80:
ALLOWANCES 48¢
INVENTORY 21,31
CURRENT ASSET¢ 114,99
PP&E 1,010,72.
DEPRECIATION 586,96(
TOTAL ASSETS 710,16!
CURRENT LIABILITIES 69,61
BONDS 0
COMMON 2,67
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0
PREFERREL 0
OTHER SE 559,75¢
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 710,16!
SALES 314,93(
TOTAL REVENUES 325,77¢
CGS 302,85¢
TOTAL COSTS 302,85¢
OTHER EXPENSE! 8,801
LOSS PROVISION 0
INTEREST EXPENSE 407
INCOME PRETAX 13,70¢
INCOME TAX 5,04
INCOME CONTINUING 9,751
DISCONTINUED 0
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 9,751
EPS PRIMARY A4C
EPS DILUTED A4C
End of Filing
pewerad 5y EDCAR -
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